Disclosure And Demand For Damages Payments

A Multi-Agency Filing

OVERVIEW

Plaintiff personally knew famous politicians, and their Big Tech financiers, (Some even stayed at his
house) who joined forces to manipulate government funds, and stock market rigged "market pumps"
into their own pockets in the last two "stimulus" funds. Plaintiff was invited into the scheme but
declined and became a federal witness.

There has never been so much taxpayer cash given to so few people, where each, and every, one of the
recipients was a friend of the politicians. Those who got the cash immediately skimmed "unjust stock
market profits" with it and paid kick-backs to the politicians.

Almost every competitor to the insiders, including Plaintiff, was attacked and sabotaged using state and
federal resources to pay Fusion GPS, Black Cube, The Denton Tabloids, Media Matters, In-Q-Tel and
other attack services. The victims demand justice and restitution for the government investment fraud,
loss of years of their lives under a false federal pretext, harassment and interference they suffered. The
victims seek to be compensated for the malicious, proven, retribution tactics, lies, toxic exposures,
vendetta cut-offs of all earned government funds and benefits, tort-based interference, "missing hard
drives" and interdiction efforts conducted, with applicants own tax dollars, against the applicants.
White House senior executives and California’s most powerful Senators hired a tabloid publisher to
seed the internet with self-produced defamation articles and animated attack videos and paid Google to
manually lock those attack media items on the first line of every Google and YouTube search, around
the globe, for over a decade. Orders were given, BY the Defendants, TO certain federal agencies
directing those agencies to with-hold beneficial actions, FOR Plaintiffs, as reprisal for reporting the
crimes.

This is a felony-class slush-fund crime that has cost taxpayers trillions of dollars in losses and has cost
Plaintiffs many tens of millions of dollars in damages and losses. The government has lost billions of
dollars from Defendants tax evasions and money laundering and Google, for example, failed to report
over a billion dollars of political campaign contributions.

Big investment banks like J.P. Morgan, Goldman Sachs, et al. coordinated these schemes with money
laundering, tax evasion, offshore covert funds and other financial trickery. FinCEN, Interpol, FBI,
GAO, and most other investigators, have proof of these assertions but they have been stalled from
making arrests. The money-tracks go right back to the politicians families from the bank accounts of
Google, Facebook, Tesla, Netflix, Sony Pictures, etc; forensic accounting records. Government
agencies were in charge of making sure these crimes did not happen but they chose to 'steal instead of
serve'! They chose to help these crooks 'cheat instead of compete'!

1  Federal Complaint



The politicians that the taxpayers EMPLOY do not get to make hundreds of millions of dollars in
crooked profits off of government funds that are supposed to help citizens under duress. They won't let
Plaintiffs have a jury trial, or a live Senate hearing, because they know they will lose and they will be
shamed!

Defendants are government employees and contractors and their political financier corporations and
individual high net worth oligarch owners.

http://www.the-truth-about-the-dept-of-energy.com

http://www.majesticl111.com

Table Of Contents On Page 54 - Draft Revision 4.7
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COMPLAINT DRAFT

WITNESS2021B, )
Plaintiff,

Case No. TBD

V.

U.S. Government Employees And
Contractors and Their Corporate And
Individual Political Financiers, DOES 1
through 20

Defendants

— " N N N Y N Y N N

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

CAUSES OF ACTION

ABUSE OF PROCESS; FTCA VIOLATIONS; ACCOUNT STATED; BREACH OF
CONTRACT; CONVERSION; DEFAMATION; FRAUDULENT MISREPRESENTATION;
FRAUDULENT CONCEALMENT; INJURIOUS FALSEHOOD, PRODUCT
DISPARAGEMENT AND TRADE LIBEL; CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATIONS AND VIOLATIONS
OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION; MISAPPROPRIATION OF TRADE SECRETS; PRIMA
FACIE TORT; QUANTUM MERUIT; TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE INCLUDING A.)
TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH AN EXISTING CONTRACT, B.) TORTIOUS
INTERFERENCE WITH PROSPECTIVE, C.) TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH
BUSINESS RELATIONS CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS; PATENT INFRINGEMENT;
PERSONAL INJURY; UNJUST ENRICHMENT; ANTI-TRUST LAW VIOLATIONS; LABOR
LAW VIOLATIONS AND SUCH OTHER CAUSES TO BE NAMED.

COMPLAINT

(For Compensatory Relief)
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Parties

¢ Plaintiff WITNESS2021B (“WITNESS”) is a Congressionally awarded, White House
commended, USPTO patent awarded, federally financed government employee/contractor
innovative energy technology producer and program director associated with a global auto
production group and a global power plant development group. WITNESS, who obtained a
(“GOVT”) award grant from the United States Congress, under the Iraq War Bill, has
received commendations from the Congress and from the federal government’s various
premier high technology research organizations. WITNESS has been associated with The
White House and government agency projects, in technology development and law
enforcement investigation, since 1978. WITNESS2021B is disabled, senior and low-
income-validated to receive all fee waivers and expediting in this matter. Sinister disabling
attacks, media hit-jobs and defunding reprisals were launched against WITNESS by
Defendants, who were both government employees and contractors AND owners of
Plaintiff’s competitors AND, stock market profiteering beneficiaries AND operators of the
attacks, black-lists and reprisal defunding attacks on Plaintiff as vendetta for reporting
crimes which resulted in indictments, arrests and terminations of Defendants and their
crony associates in “The Enterprise”, a RICO law violating, anti-trust violating scheme to
steal stimulus funds that continues to this day.

®  Whereas, The Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA) sets forth procedures for presenting and
resolving administrative monetary claims for personal injury, property damage, or death
arising from the alleged negligence of officers and employees of the United States
Government acting in the scope of their official duties. Under the FTCA, 28 U.S.C. §8§
2671-2680, individuals who are injured or whose property is damaged by the wrongful or
negligent act of a federal employee acting within his or her official duties may file a claim
with the government for reimbursement for that injury or damage. This claim is a valid
claim, because claimant has demonstrated that:

e - he or she was injured, or his or her property was damaged by a federal government
employee;

¢ - the employee was acting within the scope of his or her official duties;

e - the employee was acting negligently or wrongfully; and

e - the negligent or wrongful act proximately caused the injury or damage of which he or she
complains.

® The claimant herein has provided documentation establishing that his claim satisfies all the
elements of the FTCA

¢ Defendant is The U.S. Government (“GOVT”), a government body. WITNESS has
reported to, and interacted with, said entity via it’s agencies: DOE, DOJ, FBI, SEC, FTC,
OPM, GAO, FEC, FERC, HUD, SSA, The White House and related agencies, and
DOES 1 through 20 and those parties participated in cover-ups, attacks, reprisals,
defunding, defamation, RICO violations and related crimes and abuses.

Jurisdiction and Venue
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This case presents a federal matter within this Court’s jurisdiction under Article III of the
United States Constitution, 28 U.S.C. § 1331, and the Administrative Procedure Act, 5
U.S.C. § 702; and under other related law acts and precedents.

This Court has authority to grant declaratory relief under the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28
U.S.C. § 2201 et seq., and to award damages, costs and attorneys’ fees under 28 U.S.C. §
2412; and under other related acts and precedents.

Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e); and under other related acts and
precedents.

Facts

Background

Pursuant to §136 of the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007, 42 U.S.C. § 17013,
the U.S. Department of Energy (“GOVT”) administers the Advanced Technology Vehicle
Manufacturing (ATVM) loan program to support the manufacture of advanced technology
vehicles and components in the United States. In 2008, Congress authorized GOVT to
make $25 billion in ATVM loans. GOVT currently has over $16 billion of unused lending
authority. Congress-people, GOVT agency executives and their Silicon Valley financiers
invested in stock ownerships of the upside collateral profits from the manipulation of
Department of Energy and foreign mining benefits from Iraq, Afghanistan and other
foreign mining regions.

The public officials operated a profiteering scam based on the exploitation of stocks from
government policy financed energy and mining deals and they operated this scheme in
violation of RICO, anti-trust, civil rights and other law violations. The perpetrators ‘before’
and ‘after’ stock market account records and leaked private emails and phone calls prove
this. DOJ, FTC and SEC are strongly encouraged to expand their criminal investigation
into short selling by hedge funds and research firms benefiting politicians as bribery
payola. Federal law enforcement must more deeply scrutinize the symbiotic covert
relationships between Senators and tech companies and hunt for signs that improperly
coordinated trades broke laws to create profiteering schemes for corrupt U.S. Senators. Ie:

https://www.businessinsider.com/conflicted-congress-key-findings-stock-act-finances-
investing-2021-12

Investigators have found that Nancy Pelosi and her family, Dianne Feinstein and her
family, Harry Reid, Kamala Harris and her family and other, mostly West Coast, Politicians
and tech companies are doing stock market crimes together. Witness testimony has been
that those politicians took bribes, through the stock market, for unjust gain while harming
their competitors. Elon Musk, Goldman Sachs and those politicians, being, of course, one
of the worst examples.
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Federal probes, currently run by the DOJ fraud section with federal prosecutors in Los
Angeles, are digging into how hedge funds tap into research and set up their bets,
especially in the run-up to publication of reports that move stocks., ie: “Fake McKinsey
White Papers” created by Kleiner Perkins, Draper Fisher, Greylock, et al, to manipulate
energy markets for Tesla, batteries, solar, etc. McKinsey produced and released hundreds of
biased reports for the Obama financiers to push “Cleantech” and lithium ion batteries
which Obama’s financiers exclusively owned. Mckinsey’s founder is quoted as promoting
“monopolies” and “competitor destruction via lies”.

“While one is prying into financial relationships between hedge funds and researchers, and
hunting for signs that money managers sought to engineer startling stock drops or engaged
in other abuses, such as insider trading, the California politicians must not be ignored,
protected or given a pass because they are friends with some DOJ officials or because it is
“politically embarrassing” for certain elitists social lives...”

Witnesses have sworn, warranted and certified that these West Coast politicians are
engaging in felony organized crime using the stock market to receive bribes from
companies that they favor, and, or own!

Underscoring the inquiry’s sweep, federal investigators are examining trading in at least
several dozen stocks, including well-known short targets such as Luckin Coffee Inc., Banc
of California Inc., Mallinckrodt Plc and GSX Techedu Inc.

All reporters are watching to see if they hear that any federal investigator is ignoring the
SpaceX, Tesla, Netflix, Google, Instagram, Facebook, etc. stock market payola to
politicians because there will be hell to pay.

Peter D. Cair is the FBI’s “Elliot Ness” in San Francisco. He busted one of the early
NETFLIX stock scams. More recently, Other Netflix engineers were caught in stock scams.
Why did the investigation, though not go all the way up to Obama and Susan Rice and their
Netflix “trades”?

The feds must scrutinize over 100 tech firms WITH the help of unbiased SEC and FTC
investigators.

Toronto-based Anson Funds and anonymous researcher Marcus Aurelius Value are among
firms involved in the inquiry. Other prominent firms that circulated research on stocks
under scrutiny include Carson Block’s Muddy Waters Capital and Andrew Left’s Citron
Research. The investigations, though, MUST look at the deeply compromised McKinsey
Consulting, which the Silicon Valley oligarchs lobby the feds to avoid looking.

This U.S. probe finally opens yet another front in an already treacherous era for those who
try to profit on stock drops. Some bearish funds threw in the towel as government stimulus
buoyed prices during the pandemic. That pressure intensified as retail investors organized
counterattacks on popular short targets, bidding up shares to inflict losses on hedge funds
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this year. By late January, Citron vowed to give up short-selling research and focus on long
bets.

Meanwhile, companies criticized by short sellers have become increasingly bold in firing
back, sometimes launching legal battles even as they face government probes that
ultimately support short sellers’ theses. A number of corporate executives have been hoping
U.S. authorities might help to further shift the focus to investors’ tactics., ie: Eric Schmidt,
Larry Page, Elon Musk, Mark Zuckerberg, Steve Jurvetson, Goguen, et al.

Government attorneys are trying to determine whether short sellers engaged in some form
of deception -- say, by misleading the public about their financing of what appears to be
independent research, violating confidentiality agreements with authors, or orchestrating
stock plunges to panic shareholders and exacerbate selling... THEY DID and West Coast
politicians profit from those crimes as payola.

We all know that DOJ has a database to look at every cent that moved in and out of Nancy
Pelosi’s 22+ family trusts, bank accounts, and investment bank funds for the last 20 years.
The evidence is overt and tracks straight back to the “Enterprise”, but it is DEEPLY
covered up by those who are friends with Pelosi at DOJ and other agencies. Covering up
such crimes, though, is a felony itself!

Hedge funds are known to strike a wide variety of deals with researchers, sometimes
paying handsome subscription fees for fresh insights into possible corporate trouble, or
even becoming an author’s primary source of funding. In one example, prominent financial
investigator Harry Markopolos, who normally makes money from whistle-blower

awards, said he partnered with a hedge fund to share profits when he released a report on
General Electric Co. Politicians get the profits from such deals in exchange for keeping
competitors to Tesla and SpaceX from getting funded.

Some hedge funds have been known to suggest targets to researchers, who then deliver
scathing reports that harm companies that Senators own the stocks in.

One cautionary tale emerged in court after Dallas-based Sabrepoint Capital agreed to pay a
short-selling researcher a monthly retainer of US$9,500 in 2018. Sabrepoint encouraged
him to dig into real estate company Farmland Partners Inc. The researcher, who also wrote
publicly under a pseudonym, later published an article on Seeking Alpha, setting off a 39
per cent drop in Farmland’s share price. The company sued and used a judge’s order to
force him to reveal his identity: Quinton Mathews.

The entire stock market just seems to be a well oiled scam that only profits a few oligarchs
and most West Coast Senators!

Mathews later said in a statement that he subsequently “learned” his article “contained
inaccuracies and false allegations” and retracted it. He and Farmland reached a settlement.
Sabrepoint has said it didn’t know about the Seeking Alpha article.
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Farmland also is on the list of stocks that the Justice Department is examining. Lawyers for
Sabrepoint and Mathews declined to comment.

The Justice Department unit handling the inquiry already has a formidable reputation on
Wall Street. It recently brought several cases against global banks and traders for illegal
spoofing of precious metals and Treasury futures. As part of that probe, JPMorgan Chase &
Co. paid more than US$900 million in penalties after its traders placed and canceled orders
for commodities to benefit positions held by the bank or prized hedge fund clients. Those
cases were brought by analyzing trading data for suspicious patterns and then attributing it
to individual traders. The DOJ must GO TO THE TOP of these mobsters and take out
Goldman Sachs bosses and U.S. Senators that run this MAFIA and the Elon Musk’s and
Eric Schmidt’s that are their operatives!

While prosecutors in the short-selling investigation issued subpoenas as recently as
October, the effort has been underway much longer. It is time for perp walks of Senators
and not just the low level flunkies!

Theses inquiries gained momentum after U.S. lawmakers called for more scrutiny of short
sellers following the so-called meme-stock trading frenzy that erupted in January. In a
single week that month, retail investors sent the price of GameStop Corp. soaring more
than 700 per cent before brokerages began limiting bets. Some organizers of the buying
spree claimed hedge funds had been unfairly using their market clout to drive down stocks.

The compromised Senators have held multiple hearings on the fracas, at times discussing
whether to force short sellers to boost disclosures but their hand-wringing is all for show.
They fear that the dogs are on their trail.

Concerns about how short sellers carry out attacks have arisen repeatedly over the years.

The Securities and Exchange Commission and Justice Department have gone after hedge
funds for running “short and distort” campaigns. The practice typically involves setting up
bearish bets, then releasing misleading or inaccurate information about a company to drive
down the price before closing out the position for a profit.

But there are also concerns about the impact that earnest research can have when it’s
sprung by surprise on the market.

Studies by Columbia University law professor Joshua Mitts have found that short sellers’
reports can briefly induce bouts of panic selling before shares rebound. In those jittery
moments -- sometimes mere minutes or hours -- well-positioned short sellers can cash out
of trades and pocket significant gains.

Mitts examined more than 1,700 reports made by pseudonymous short sellers from 2010 to
2017, concluding that they contributed to more than US$20 billion in dislocated values or
temporarily mispriced stocks.
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* Academics have been encouraging U.S. authorities to address the possibility that short
sellers are laying out their cases against stocks, then using the impact of that news to
quickly reap gains and quietly move on.

e Early last year, Mitts and about a dozen other prominent securities-law professors urged the
SEC to write rules requiring that short sellers who voluntarily reveal bets against a stock be
required to disclose when they’ve exited the position. The professors also asked the
regulator to write a new rule that would make closing a short position immediately after
disseminating a negative report -- with an intent to do so upon publication -- constitute
market manipulation.

o One of the most powerful lawmakers in the U.S. defended the right of congresspeople to
trade stocks. She, Feinstein, Reid, Harris and other California politicians own Silicon
Valley companies Google, Facebook, Netflix, Apple, Facebook, Tesla, SpaceX and
YouTube and get them federal cash. They defund their competitors and put hit-jobs on
those competitors, who are their own constituents. These politicians block government
actions that would regulate these companies and laws designed to control the corruption
and public safety hazards of these companies.

When asked about the issue during a press conference, House Speaker Nancy Pelosi (D-Calif.) said that
"We’re a free market economy" and lawmakers "should be able to participate in that." That reply was
an insincere, pandering, smoke-screen of a lie!

Pelosi's own stock portfolio, which gained over $65 million in value between 2019 and 2021, has often
been the subject of scrutiny. The Stop Trading on Congressional Knowledge (STOCK) Act, which was
passed in 2012, is designed to combat insider trading by lawmakers, who many across the spectrum
argue have too much access to inside information to be able to trade stocks ethically. In October, the
Federal Reserve banned its officials from owning individual stocks. In March 2020, four senators were
accused of insider trading and investigated by the Justice Department when they sold off stocks ahead
of the COVID-19-induced economic downturn.

Voices across the spectrum, especially on the right but also on the left, criticized Pelosi's comments and
questioned her position. Many argue that lawmakers since have access to information that the public
does not, and because they also have the ability to write and pass policy, they shouldn't be allowed to
buy and sell individual stocks and other assets. Some on the right highlighted silence from other
progressives in response to Pelosi's statement despite their previous opposition to the practice.

Nancy Pelosi owns more than $500,000 in Apple stock, according to her financial disclosure reports.
Pelosi is also the speaker of the House. Congressional Democrats and Republicans alike have
introduced multiple antitrust bills that would affect Big Tech companies.

The CEO of Apple, Tim Cook, called Pelosi personally in June and told her not to move ahead on these
bills. The House Judiciary Committee passed six of these bills in June. Not one of them has seen
movement on the House floor in six months, with some reports pinning the inaction on the speaker.
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https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/STOCK_Act#About_STOCK
https://www.fineprintdata.com/post/pelosistocks
https://www.fineprintdata.com/post/pelosistocks

Back in January, Pelosi’s husband, Paul, bought at least a quarter million in “call” options for Apple,
which is a more sophisticated way of betting on a stock going up in value.

Paul Pelosi also bought at least half a million in call options for Tesla, which stood to get subsidized by
the Build Back Better bill his wife shepherded through the House.

The Pelosis are already very rich, and nobody but the Pelosis themselves knows the motivations of
Nancy Pelosi or the calculations of Paul Pelosi. But still, it ought to raise eyebrows that the speaker of
the House keeps taking actions that benefit her stock portfolio.

Yet Pelosi said on Wednesday that there should be no restrictions on her ability to buy and sell stocks in
the companies she’s regulating, subsidizing, protecting, and taxing.

Pelosi, says lawmakers/Capitol staff shouldn't be prohibited from trading stock: "This is a
free market, we are a free market economy, they should be able to participate in that."

— Mariana Alfaro (@marianaa_alfaro) December 15, 2021

This is especially rich because Pelosi has a long history of entangling her policymaking with her
family’s profit-making. Peter Schweizer, in his book Throw Them All Out, documented how Pelosi and
her husband have gained insider status and made millions betting on companies that were directly

involved in pending legislation.

Back in 2009, I wrote about businessman William Hambrecht, who went into business with Paul Pelosi,
hired Paul Jr., and finagled a Financial Services Committee hearing on legislation that would increase
business for Hambrecht’s company. Congressmen and senators and their husbands and wives should be
barred from buying and selling stocks, if not owning stocks. At the least, the stocks should be held in a
blind trust. Better they should have to divest all their stocks and roll the money into a few select mutual
funds.

Maybe we should compensate them for this sacrifice by paying them more, but the people subsidizing,
regulating, taxing, exempting, and protecting corporations shouldn’t at the same time be investing in
them. The truth is that no one should trade individual stocks, unless you want to lose your money. Just
put what you can in an index fund, and you’ll be fine. But unlike you, members of Congress are often
privy to information the general public doesn’t have, and when they trade on that information, it creates
serious conflicts of interest.

Only occasionally is a member of Congress found guilty of that kind of securities fraud; former
representative Chris Collins (R-N.Y.) was in 2019 (but he was pardoned by then-President Donald
Trump). The California Senators sabotaged Zap, Fisker, XP, Apterra and a host of competitors to Tesla
because those Senators own Tesla and are financed by Elon Musk. But even if they aren’t found guilty
of breaking the law, at a minimum it can create the appearance of corruption.

And so, when a U.S. senator frantically dumps $1.6 million in stocks just before the market tanks
because of the pandemic (and calls his brother-in-law, who immediately dumps his own stocks), people
might conclude that their elected representatives must be corrupt.
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https://www.propublica.org/article/burrs-brother-in-law-called-stock-broker-one-minute-after-getting-off-phone-with-senator
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/politics/president-trump-pardons-former-rep-chris-collins/ar-BB1c9MA4
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https://sanfrancisco.cbslocal.com/2011/11/14/60-minutes-questions-whether-pelosi-traded-stock-on-inside-information/
https://sanfrancisco.cbslocal.com/2011/11/14/60-minutes-questions-whether-pelosi-traded-stock-on-inside-information/
https://www.amazon.com/Throw-Them-All-Out-Politicians/dp/0547573146
https://twitter.com/marianaa_alfaro/status/1471155232935604226?ref_src=twsrc%5Etfw
https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/tag/nancy-pelosi?utm_campaign=autolink&utm_source=internal&utm_medium=autolink
https://disclosures-clerk.house.gov/public_disc/ptr-pdfs/2021/20019004.pdf

Fortunately, there’s a simple solution to this problem: Ban members of Congress and staffers from
trading individual stocks. For the time they serve in Congress, they can put their holdings into mutual
funds.

It isn’t like that’s some kind of hardship. Over time, the stock market tends to rise! They’ll make
money.

A better way to look at this issue might be to ask why it’s important for members of Congress to be
allowed to trade individual stocks. Is this some kind of foundational freedom that no American should
be denied even for a temporary period? Did generations of brave American service members lay down
their lives so your congressman could take a chance on Tesla shares going up next year?

Being a lawmaker is a privilege and a public trust. And it comes with some sacrifices. This doesn’t
seem like a particularly onerous one, and it would be easier to enforce than the Stock Act — which
doesn’t seem to get much enforcement at all. No complex reporting requirements, no deadlines, and no
questions about whether a trade really was based on nonpublic information. Just a simple rule that says
that as long as you’re in Congress you can’t buy or sell individual stocks.

The corruption in politics involving stock market payola is MAFIA level crime that the politicians
make special laws to exclude themselves from arrest over.

e Let us be clear: United States Senators and White House staff are engaging in these
crimes and manipulating DOJ, SEC and FTC efforts in order to protect themselves.
That must end today!

e  WITNESS has attempted hundreds of “proper procedure” efforts to resolve this matter in
writing but government officials either:
1.) Stonewall any response, or
2.) Get fired or transferred if they investigate the matter, or
3.) Send a generic non-responsive form letter, or
4.) Finger point to another agency in an endless runaround.

¢ WITNESS was attacked by government financed, directed and resourced hired attack
services who had command-and-control operated by government officials.

e The GOVT has spent over ten times more money on delaying the payment of funds to
WITNESS than if they had just settled with WITNESS in the first place. The GOVT has
exacerbated the case to the point that it has gained thousands of times more media coverage
than if they had just settled with WITNESS in the first place.

The GOVT has wasted vast amounts of taxpayer money and created an international media
incident when those losses could have been entirely avoided if they had just settled with
WITNESS, and been responsive to the WITNESS, in the first place.

e Many government officials, up to and including: the U.S. Attorney General, The Secretary

of Energy, The Director of the FBI, etc., have been fired over this case and related matters,
due to their attempts to manipulate government funds and resources to inure to a cartel of
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insiders who backed those officials appointments to those positions. (ie: The Covington &
Burling files)

WITNESS has served his nation and his community for the full duration of his life.
WITNESS became a government witness and reported on crimes by government officials.
In reprisal, revenge, vendetta, retaliation and retribution, angry government officials took
away his house, his income, his job, his life savings, his brand and every possible source of
income using sophisticated spycraft-type attacks. They attacked him as reprisal/vendetta
because he reported an organized crime activity involving famous U.S. Senators and their
billionaire sex-addict financiers.( ie: for context, look up the court cases of Jeffrey Epstein,
Andy Rubin, Howard Rubin, Ed Buck and the hundreds of other related sex cult cases in

the federal courts on http://www.pacer.gov.)

WITNESS served the public, only to have the criminals they investigated get hundreds of
billions of dollars, at the expense of WITNESS and public tax dollars, while WITNESS got
nothing and lost everything.

In 2007, if someone said: “SSA and other government offices have been weaponized to
provide revenge, retribution, reprisal and retaliation attacks against witnesses, whistle-
blowers and journalists...” one might have laughed. Now, as of 2021, over 2000 victorious
lawsuits and IG investigations later, the assertion of vendetta attacks by public agencies has
irrefutably been proven, in courts, to have been totally true.

It is now well documented in court records and in federal investigations that over 120
companies (listed by name, below, in the Exhibits) sell attack services (“hit-jobs”) to well
known politicians.

WITNESS’s investigators have proven that kill services (like Gawker-Gizmodo, Black
Cube, Fusion GPS, etc.) were hired by public officials and aimed at one the victims
because of their effective law enforcement cases. Police records prove that the arrested
and/or charged financiers of these public officials (ie: Howard Rubin, Ed Buck, Roger
Boas, Jeffrey Epstein, Joe Lonsdale , Eric Schmidt, Andy Rubin, Sergy Brin, Steve Bing,
Michael Goguen, Forrest Hayes, Tom Perkins, etc.) ran a national executives-only sex cult
in which some victims were murdered and many were underage. The depth of their sick
depravity proves that the perpetrators will stoop to any crime, using the highest levels of
government resources, to cover-up their crimes. WITNESS helped investigate some of
these perverted perpetrators and has had government agencies deployed to attack him in
reprisal, retribution, retaliation efforts as payback. The FBI has the full capacity and
resources to easily confirm this via an interview and investigation of the Defendants hired
attackers, specifically Nicholas Guido Denton, John Herrman, Gabrial Darbyshire, Patrick
George, Jay Carney, Robert Gibbs, Adrian Covert, John Cook, Elon Musk and those other
parties listed herein, and, in fact, may have already done so. The FBI will be subpoenaed in
this matter.
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The Silicon Valley tech oligarchs from Tesla, Google, Facebook, Kleiner Perkins, etc.,
manage a large part of these crimes. For example, one applicant’s Senators have made
many tens of millions of dollars in profits and bribes off (hidden in real estate (ie:
https://www.wsj.com/articles/big-tech-companies-amass-property-holdings-during-covid-

19-pandemic-11632821401

...off-shore accounts, unbilled search engine manipulations, electric vehicle stocks, Netflix
board “fees”, etc.) of Google. Google is one victim’s competitor, patent infringer and
operator of the largest of the attacks. Google, literally, controlled and staffed, The White
House in 2008. The financing, command and control, deployment and beneficiaries all
point directly to the perpetrators, like Google VC’s and the politicians they financed, in this
case. The FBI, FinCEN and other investigators have “no doubt” about who attacked the
Applicant and the scope of the spy agency tactics that were used.

Over 1000 news stories such as:
https://nypost.com/2021/08/04/facebook-exec-helped-cuomo-smear-sex-harassment-
accuser-aqg/

... prove that politicians partner with Silicon Valley oligarchs to character assassinate law
abiding citizens in retribution campaigns.

Further proving our assertions, this story:
https://www.vice.com/en/article/q5gk73/qgoogle-fired-dozens-for-data-misuse

... (and thousands more like it) proves that big tech’s deepest internal staff sell services to
political parties for spy-agency-like attacks on citizens.

In the report:
https://www.newsmax.com/us/federal-agencies-cyberattacks-report-security/2021/08/03/
id/1030939/

...and the associated 47 page government report, The U.S. Government has confirmed that
it was incapable of safe-guarding the victim’s data during the past period.

Over 10,000 news reports like:

https:// www.khaama.com/afghanistan-the-saudi-arabia-of-lithium-1747/

and
https.//www.mining.com/1-trillion-motherlode-of-lithium-and-gold-discovered-in-
afghanistan/

and
https://www.seeker.com/afghanistan-the-saudi-arabia-of-lithium-discovery-news-
1766491089.html

... prove that the U.S. war in Afghanistan was pitched as an opportunity to grab “trillions”
of dollars of electric car and cell phone minerals for Silicon Valley oligarchs who funded
White House political campaigns in exchange for market exploitation exclusives for those
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mining deals. Barack Obama's staff and financiers owned the stock market assets for those
mining deals. Secretary of Energy Steven Chu (as well as Jennifer Granholm) and staff also
own the same stocks. Mining oligarch Frank Giustra
(https://www.businessinsider.com/frank-giustras-amazing-comment-about-bill-clinton-
2015-4?0p=1) was the business partner of the Clinton dynasty invested in that mining.
Dianne Feinstein, Nancy Pelosi, Harry Reid and other senators own electric car company
Tesla Motors supplier interests. It is impossible for any party to deny the fact that lithium
ion battery mining did not motivate the entire government administration from 2007 to
today.

With the fall of Afghanistan to the Taliban on Aug. 16, 2021, the entire sham of the Afghan
War has been exposed. On, or around, that date former and current White House, Pentagon
and related officials like Natalie “May” Edwards and John Denniston’s staff, in anger over
the administrative failure of the entire Afghanistan program, (See attached Inspector
General report and other material in Exhibits) released, leaked and/or discussed formerly
confidential information confirming the veracity of the assertions of WITNESS.
Additionally, invading forces PR offices, in Afghanistan, are now leaking all of the war
documents, since Russia invaded Afghanistan, to the press and the open internet.
Additionally, WITNESS had personal relationships with senior White House, State
Department, USAID and City Hall executives and those parties shared internal evidence
and policy decision materials with WITNESS. Additionally, The news of a full breach of
the State Department has been announcd. The breach comes just weeks after a Senate
Homeland Security Committee report rated the department’s overall information security
program as a "D" — the lowest possible rating within the federal government’s model. The
report found the department’s security to be "ineffective in four of five function areas" and
highlighted the fact that "sensitive national security information" was at risk.

Names, dates of birth, and social security numbers used for passport vetting were among the sensitive
information the committee’s report noted were hacked, including the files relating to WITNESS and
this case data: "Auditors identified weaknesses related to State’s protection of sensitive information and
noted the Department ‘did not have an effective data protection and privacy program in place’," the
committee said.

All of the charged political figures had:

1.) the exclusive means,

2.) the exclusive motivation,

3.) the exclusive extensive history of using attack services,

4.) the exclusive benefits from such attacks on the whistle-blowers,

5.) the exclusive jobs to allow them to engage in corruption,
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6.) the positions as business competitors to the victims, whose competing technologies
obsoleted their investments; and other forensic connections which make it obvious that
those parties were the perpetrators of the attacks on the citizens discussed herein.

WITNESS was specifically and illegally excluded from participation in funding, benefits,
jobs and income by major political figures, including U.S. Senators and White House
executives who he knew personally, and their Silicon Valley oligarch financiers. They
attacked him as reprisal because he would not cooperate with their sex trafficking, tax
evasion, off-shore money laundering, political bribery quid-pro-quo, revolving door payola
scams, foreign nation-sponsored domestic manipulations, stock market rigging, internet
censorship and search engine manipulation and other crimes.

The perpetrators attacked WITNESS in retaliation because he reported their crimes to
federal police. They attacked him as revenge because his products obsoleted their products.
They attacked him using taxpayer-funded state resources. That is a felony violation of the
law. The ongoing cover-up of these crimes and attacks is also a felony violation of the law.
WITNESS is owed damages compensation, witness fees and back-pay.

In 1988 The Federal Office Of Personnel Management ranked this victim, known herein as
“Witness2021B” , with a top 85 percentile ranking as a Criminal Investigator in the 1811-C
nationals when he was being solicited by the government for cross-border case work as a
Federal Criminal Investigator (See OPM documents, attached). In other words, he placed
top-in-the-nation when the government assessed his criminal investigation skills. His
father, an electronics signals intelligence analyst specialist with the U.S. Army and
grandfather, a U.S. Air Force Colonel had both been federal intelligence specialists in a
portion of their careers. By 1988, Witness2021B had already been working on organized
crime and corruption matters since 1978. His white-collar and corruption cases were
predominantly under-cover and sting operations and were side-projects keyed off of his
public work as a private sector management and technology specialist for corporations and
community programs.

Famous political figures, spent many evenings at victim’s house, were friends with victim,
worked with victim, confided in victim, and provided victim with the highest level
knowledge and experience in public policy operations. In fact, when Witness2021B ran for
Mayor of his City, it was actually a sting operation which indicted two other well-known
political figures and exposed a political City Hall sex ring and the Chief Administrator of
the City was arrested over this.

Some of those figures informed Witness2021B of their organized crime scheme, the
participants and the operators. They invited Witness2021B to become part of their scheme.

As a White House and City Hall commended Federal patent-awarded inventor/CEO,
Witness2021B has been government, and network newscast, documented as the first to
invent, launch, operate and deliver the companies and technology that Google, Facebook

Federal Complaint



16

and Netflix copied to create their, later, operations. Google, Facebook and Netflix, Tesla
executives and VC’s also happen to be the organizing, financing and beneficiary partners in
the market manipulation scheme in this case. They have all known Witness2021B since
college. Thus, Witness2021B had the opportunity to see them form their “Silicon Valley
Cartel”, collude, conspire and organize against the government, the public and
industry in a manner which the tech oligarchs describe in their own emails as being based
on “..the Italian Mafia!”. Indeed, The Silicon Valley Tech oligarchs have formed a
collusion-based, law-violating, tax-evading, government-manipulating crime empire
protected by famous politicians, whom they bribe!

Witness2021B has been covertly reporting to GAO, FBI, FTC, SEC, FEC, IG OSC,
California Fair Political Practices officials and Senators and others for decades.

His investigation work highlights include:

1974 — Advocated for and helped realize the creation of Dan Lowenstein’s California Fair
Political Practices Commission and helped conduct investigations for CFPC and task force
groups. Peers included Paul Kangas, Jack Palladino, Sam Brown, Melvin Belli’s
investigators.

1978 - Undercover White-Collar Crime & Corruption Sting Operative

1988 - Placed in top percentile in Federal OPM Criminal Investigator 1811-C national test.
Received first CIA solicitation.

1990 - American Society For Industrial Security - active coordinator

1990 - International Narcotic Enforcement Officers Association - active coordinator
1991 - California Association of Licensed Investigators - active coordinator

2000 - California Department of Consumer Affairs Investigator - active coordinator
2000-2008 - Investigative Consultant to Congressional and journalism organizations

2009- 2018 - Assisted agencies in one of the largest anti-corruption projects in the last
decade

- Recipient of White House and Congressional Commendations and Federal Grants
- Instrumental in creating multiple federal laws and legal precedents

- Designed key sting-operation protocols

- Created first digital crowd-sourced law enforcement technologies

- Received multiple federal patents on IC and LE technologies

- Multiple high-profile white-collar case wrap-ups

Federal Complaint



17

His cases included notorious subjects that most people have seen in the news headlines.
Lately, by partnering with the messaging, media outreach, investigations and demands of
https://socialsecurityworks.org , https://seniorsleague.org , AARP, ICIJ and other related
organizations, and using Streisand Effect amplifiers, torrents and mass social media
processing, This applicant, and his peers were able to get the heads of the Social Security
Administration, the heads of The U.S. Government and the Attorney General fired from
their jobs for corruption and abuse of public funds.

Nobody should tolerate political bullies that collude to abuse the public! Most members of
the public, the non-corporate news media and community groups know that this level of
corruption exists. You can see indisputable proof of these assertions in the documentary
film:

http://focus-book.com/public’ HOW POLITICAL CORRUPTION WORKS.m4v

http://newsplus007.com/public’ HOW_POLITICAL CORRUPTION WORKS.m4v

... and at many streaming video outlets.

Due to the effectiveness of Applicant’s associates anti-corruption efforts, public officials
have engaged in reprisal/retaliation attacks on Applicant and those officials engaged in
felonies by doing that.

In the Solyndra/Silion Valley Cartel matter, Witness2021B did “too good a job” and broke
up one of the largest corruption matters in America with roots that ran all the way to the
Oval Office. The FBI raid on Solyndra was only the tip of the iceberg. Energy and Media
Industry crimes like these have a SIX TRILLION DOLLAR upside if the crooks can pull
them off.

The matter illuminated an organized crime scheme, in violation of RICO, anti-trust and
other laws, between major public officials, Silicon Valley tech oligarchs and their
operatives. Mr. Rusco and his investiagtion team at the United States Government
Accountability Office ( http://www.gao.gov ) spent signficant time interviewing the
witness. GAO and Congress then published a series of reports condeming the actions of the
U.S. Department of Energy and their manipulations of taxpayer funds. Congressional staff
asked Witness2021B to attempt a new kind of activist public-interest lawsuit against The
U.S. Government and the individual executives of the GOVT. The litigation was won by
Witness2021B and his investors and they received the remand they sued for. The case was
also “won” in that it achieved it’s goals to make history, set new legal precedents, put the
corruption process on public record and prove that Witness2021B HAD been targeted for
payback by government officials “infected with corruption”. (http://www.pacer.gov )

The United States Congress had awarded Witness2021B, and his team, a commendation
and a multi-million dollar federal contract to build America’s energy “back-up” plan should
the Middle East oil interests ‘go sideways’, as they, indeed, have.
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Documents, NDA’s, emails and other evidence has proven that Witness2021B has had a
relationship with the Department of Energy, and their labs, since, at least 2000. FBI agents
Richard Auerbach, Peter D. Cair, Patricia Rich, Charles Brennan and William Wadman
should be able to provide information about the oldest FBI contacts. Victim even had
connections with local FBI Hero Mark Felt (known as ‘Deep Throat’ in the Watergate case)
who lived near him. Reporters Ed Montgomery, Leslie Wayne, Carol Leoning and other
well-known reporters have records which will verify some of the earliest investigation
work by Witness2021B. Recent FBI discussions are documented in the FBI building logs.
The Federal report entitled: San Francisco’s Corruption Culture (Available as an
additional attachment document in the Exhibits set) goes into great detail about the
organized political crime activities in the region.

Witness2021B and his engineering team, as early as 2005, had informed the Department of
Energy, in writing that, as Lithium ion batteries age, the ‘dendrite defects’ in their internal
chemistry cause the batteries to constantly increase their tendency to blow up. This was
proven via x-ray analysis of lithium ion batteries, particularly those from Panasonic that are
used by Tesla Motors. This data was intentionally covered up by White House and
Department of Energy executives because they wanted those “trillions” of dollars of profits
in their pockets from the fabled Afghanistan mining fields.

External forces, moisture, ambient energy waves and other factors, increase their tendency
to self-ignite. Department of Energy Secretary's of Energy, their staff, White House and
CIA executives have been proven, via their public stock brokerage records, to own lithium
ion battery companies and child labor rare earth mining interests.

That is why they cover up the dangers of toxic lithium ion (the burning smoke of which
causes cancer, brain and fetus damage) and sabotage domestic efforts to market competing
energy storage like fuel cells, ultra capacitors, alkali metal-chlorine batteries, ni-cad
batteries, beta-voltaic batteries, tritium batteries and competing alternative energy storage:
in violation of anti-trust laws.

Secretary of Energy Jennifer Granholm’s Proterra Buses are now blowing up, Tesla is
known for blowing up, Bolt and Volt cars are now blowing up and under massive recall.
Enerl batteries destroyed millions of dollars of Fisker’s when they got wet... The U.S.
Government has hundreds of reports proving this to be a fact.
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*  Witness2021B asks to end this cover up that allows corrupt politicians to profiteer on the
death of Americans!

The United States Patent Office had also awarded Witness2021B one of the historically
largest set of patents on a new, entirely produced-in-the-USA, energy technology per
http://www.uspto.gov

¢ These technologies competed with the corrupt overseas rare earth mining schemes owned
by California Senators, Department of Energy Executives, White House staff and the
Silicon Valley tech Cartel.

® Witness2021B has been a provider, advisor and/or advocate in almost every major current
federal case against the Silicon Valley Cartel since the federal “no poaching” lawsuit
against the Cartel. ( Case #’s 11-cv-2509 and 5:2011cv02509 and 1:10-cv-01629 and 1:10-
cv-02220 ). These cases, prove that the Silicon Valley Cartel colludes to harm the public
and monopolize industries.

e State-sponsored “hit-jobs” were ordered, operated and financed by government officials in
order to engage in revenge, reprisal and vendetta, against Witness2021B because of his help
to Federal investigators and Congress in these investigations. Those attacks fully
incapacitated the victim. In his public life, he has spent decades proving that nothing is
"impossible" and that one is "only limited by their imagination" per his reference letters
from clients and employers. Over the course of his work, he has assembled a global force
of some of the world's top engineering, science, physics, programming, operations and
logistics experts. He, and his peers, can respond instantly for disaster relief, market shifts
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and new global solutions demands. Solving global challenges with novel new innovations
and conceptual-blockbusting program management.

His career has been focused on solving the world's greatest challenges. He has received
awards, commendations, issued federal patents and industry acclaim for his networking,
transportation, housing, medical, communications, energy and other technologies that he
invented, built and marketed globally. Millions of user around the world deploy
technologies first created, produced and patent-awarded to him.

His hundreds of letters of reference are from the White House, Mayor’s, Fortune 500
CEQ’s and other well known leaders. He is renown for his life-time provision of service to
his community and his nation.

His work stopped in 2008 when the attacks began. Many of the attacking operatives have
been identified by name and the FBI has been asked to interview them and confirm who
was paying and directing them. White House, Congressional and co-worker whistle-

blowers, as well as recent Chinese, Russian and Syrian hacks have also cross-confirmed the
attackers and their directives.

The victim has, for years, filed all of the proper forms, gone “through proper channels” and
inquired as to next-steps from officials at the highest levels. For his efforts he has been
rewarded with cover-ups, lies, obfuscation, stone-walling and avoidance. The victim now
has one of America’s largest collections of “Finger-Pointing” letters from government
agencies and officials, each correspondence, essentially, saying: “Oh, it’s not us go try DOJ
or...(FBI, SEC, GAO..(Insert agency name here)...”. No government body will step up to
resolve the issue or allow their IG to investigate, or let “302 reports” get written for
interviews that never happen. It is the RUN-AROUND on an epic scale.

Today, in San Francisco, arrested, indicted City Hall public officials, some of whom
Witness2021B helped uncover, get paid $44,000.00 per month by the government even
though they are arrested criminals. San Francisco also pays homeless people $60,000.00
per year to sleep in a tent in front of City Hall. Today, in Washington DC, arrested, indicted
Congress-people, some of whom Witness2021B helped uncover, get paid $150,000.00 per
year by the government even though they are arrested criminals.

Today, on the other hand, Witness2021B, has had every source of income ( See reprisal
attack details, below ) blockaded by the government as reprisal for whistle-blowing.

90% of the public officials with jurisdiction own stock market assets in, or are financed by,
Witness2021B’s competitors. Workers at government agencies serving Witness2021B have
been exposed as extreme ANTIFA-type biased activists in their leaked emails, social media
postings, web photos and recorded conversations.

Witness2021B is a claimant making claims for witness fees, informant fees, rewards,
whistle-blower fees, legal fees and damages caused by this matter. Additionally, claimant
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demands legal counsel be provided by your office, for claimant, because his rights to fair
legal representation, his civil rights and his Constitutional rights have been blockaded by
these reprisal attacks, in violation of the law.

Pursuant to §1703 of Title XVII of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, 42 U.S.C. §8§ 16511,
16513, GOVT also administers the §1703 loan guarantee program (“LGP”) to support
innovative clean energy technologies that are typically unable to obtain conventional
private financing due to high technology risks. Under LGP, GOVT guarantees up to eighty
percent of a loan for projects that “avoid, reduce, or sequester air pollutants or
anthropogenic emissions of greenhouse gases; and employ new or significantly improved
technologies as compared to commercial technologies in service in the United States at the
time the guarantee is issued.” GOVT currently has approximately $34 billion in loan
authority, with an additional $170 million in appropriated credit subsidy carried over from
previous years.

ATVM Loan Application #2

After being previously awarded a multi-million dollar valued, fully executed contract in
2005; On or about November 10, 2008, WITNESS at the request of U.S. Senators and
Department of Energy officials applied for a $40 million ATVM loan to build a scalable,
innovative and efficient electric car for government agencies including the Pentagon. The
GOVT’s own Sandia National Laboratory (“Sandia”) was identified as a project
subcontractor.

This application was in response to a GOVT solicitation. GOVT was supposed to evaluate
loan applications on a “first in, first out” basis and to make ATVM loan funds available in
January, 2009 for successful applicants.

WITNESS’s car design used advanced “hot-swap cartridges” to provide nearly unlimited
range, cost less than $20,000 in base configuration, required no gasoline or extension cords
to charge, required no garage, could be used by apartment dwellers, was easy to repair and
build, and used “damp down” crash effect reduction materials.

WITNESS had operations in Detroit, the Midwest and the San Francisco Bay area. Its
design team included highly experienced automotive designers and senior Detroit
automotive management staff, the senior creation staff for the Corvette and the Mustang
and aerospace industry professionals.

A critical WITNESS innovation, based on a decade of research, was the use of next-
generation polymer plastics in the automotive body. By replacing metal doors, body panels,
hoods and roofs with lightweight polymer plastics on a carbon fiber frame and lightweight
alloy chassis, WITNESS could build a four-seat, SUV-format vehicle with a curb weight of
less than 1,400 pounds, or approximately one-third the weight of a Toyota Prius. This, in
turn, enhanced vehicle efficiency and performance.

The polymer plastic construction also added to vehicle safety, with the foam skinned
membranes functioning as a wraparound, pre-deployed airbag to withstand impacts and
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“damp out”crash damage.

WITNESS'’s pressure membrane technology was well proven and widely used in a variety
of applications, including zodiac (inflatable) boats used in leisure, commercial and military
applications, airbags, Mars landing equipment and even buildings and arenas with polymer
membrane coverings.

All of the WITNESS car’s key parts were built and tested, or already existed in off-the-
shelf components proven in the industry for over a decade. Autodesk and other engineering
software allowed for full virtual prototyping and operational testing of the design.

WITNESS’s financial and technical partners included Ranson Green Community
Development Foundation (a 501(c)(3) nonprofit), ZAP and Detroit Electric, major
automobile manufacturers and national laboratories.

WITNESS offered GOVT asset collateral of over $100 million to secure the ATVM loan.

WITNESS’s ATVM loan application revealed sensitive and confidential technical and
business information as defined by 10 CFR §§ 1004.10(b)(4), 11 and 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(4)
to GOVT. This information included fuel cell and hydrogen storage technologies, fuel
cassettes and pressure membrane body parts.

WITNESS also disclosed his issued patents for a solid-state energy storage system and an
electric and hybrid vehicle system with an estimated 3™ party appraised value of
$17,291,568.64; another U.S. Patent with an estimated 3" party appraised value of
$10,524,792.26; another U.S. Patent with an estimated 3" party appraised value of
$5,607,695.94; another U.S. Patent with an estimated 3" party appraised value of
$104,072,538.36; and other trade secret, trademark and intellectual property assets. These
IP assets were offered as collateral to GOVT.

In consideration for WITNESS’s ATVM loan application, Defendants promised to protect
WITNESS’s technical and business secrets and not to infringe its patents.

On December 2, 2008, Seward wrote to WITNESS acknowledging receipt of its application
and requesting certain additional information. See Exhibits.

WITNESS provided this information.

On December 31, 2008, Seward informed WITNESS that its application was substantially
complete, and that GOVT would advise WITNESS if it needed additional information
during the application review process. See Exhibits.

Upon information and belief, WITNESS’s ATVM loan application was the first to be
deemed substantially complete.

At all times relevant, WITNESS qualified for the ATVM loan under GOVT’s published
underwriting criteria. For example:
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o WITNESS was an “automobile manufacturer” that demonstrated “improved fuel
economy” as defined at 10 C.F.R. § 611.100(a)(1).

o WITNESS was “financially viable” as defined at 10 C.F.R. § 611.100(a)(2).

o WITNESS’s application satisfied all of GOVT’s requirements under 10 C.F.R. §
611.101 et seq.

o WITNESS’s product satisfied all of GOVT’s evaluation criteria under 10 C.F.R.
§611.103(b). Among other things, WITNESS’s car used no gasoline and traveled over
125 miles on a single charge.

o WITNESS met all of GOVT’s environmental requirements under 10 C.F.R. § 611.106
et seq.

o WITNESS was a “covered firm” as defined by GOVT at 10 C.F.R. § 611.207(a), and
eligible for the set aside specified at 10 C.F.R. § 611.207(b).

o GOVT internal staff Excel comparison matrices placed WITNESS in the top 5% in
over-all comparison metrics of all applicants.

e GOVT ostensibly began processing WITNESS’s ATVM loan application in or about
January, 2009. This process should have taken no more than several weeks.

¢ However, GOVT did not promptly underwrite WITNESS’s application.

e WITNESS was unaware that its application had been “set aside” in favor of applications
from politically-connected government cronies.

e WITNESS was unaware that Defendants had “fixed” the ATVM loan process to benefit
political donors.

e  WITNESS also was unaware that Defendants had no intention of approving WITNESS’s
ATVM loan application under any circumstances as a matter or reprisal for whistle-blowing
and unfair business practices to avoid competition against Tesla and other Congressional
stock holdings.

e Instead, WITNESS assumed Defendants were acting in good faith and in accordance with
law.

e Therefore, WITNESS repeatedly contacted GOVT to provide engineering, financial and
other information in support its application.

e On April 23, 2009, Jason Gerbsman, the Chief of Staff and Senior Investment Officer, at
the Loan Programs Office, Automotive Division, of GOVT, notified WITNESS that:

WITNESS has submitted a substantially complete application and has been assigned to

both a technical eligibility and merit review team, as well as a financial viability

analysis team. The technical team is very close to finishing their evaluations on both

eligibility and project merit, and the financial team will be launching a more detailed

and interactive due diligence phase of the WITNESS application review very soon.

Following the technical and financial evaluation under the second stage of the process,

we will move into the underwriting phase where our goal is to negotiate a conditional
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commitment, including a detailed term sheet. This will be followed by the fourth phase
of the loan process where the final details will be negotiated and the loan will be closed.

¢ On May 26, 2009, Gerbsman offered an in-person meeting to discuss “WITNESS’s next
steps.”

e On May 28, 2009, WITNESS flew a delegation from California to meet with Gerbsman,
who said that GOVT had determined “everything was in order” with WITNESS’s ATVM
loan application, that “everything looked good” and that WITNESS “appeared to be fully
compliant and passed technical review.”

¢ Shortly thereafter, WITNESS discovered that Tesla Motors, Inc. (“Tesla”) and Fisker
Motors, Inc. (“Fisker”) had received and were receiving special assistance from GOVT
staff with the ATVM loan application process. Fisker even had a business office in
GOVT’s headquarters.

e WITNESS asked for similar assistance from GOVT staff but was denied it, ostensibly
because the quality of its application was so high that no assistance was needed.

e Atall times relevant, WITNESS was actively worked with other financing sources,
including Wells Fargo Bank, to leverage the ATVM loan and fund product production.

¢ Notwithstanding GOVT’s delays and the bankruptcy of other industry players due to the
U.S. economic collapse, WITNESS continued to grow throughout 2009.

e On June 15, 2009, WITNESS informed GOVT that it was a semi-finalist in the Forbes
“America’s Most Promising Companies List” for 20009.

e On or about June 22, 2009, GOVT advised WITNESS that a Northern California solar
energy company had requested a copy of WITNESS’s ATVM loan application from GOVT
through the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”).

e WITNESS contacted this company to see why it was interested in WITNESS’s ATVM
loan.

* WITNESS spoke with the company’s principal, who said that he had been “screwed over”
by GOVT and wanted to know if others had similar experiences.

e He said that the company had suffered “bad dealings” with Matt Rogers, a “stimulus
advisor” to Chu from McKinsey & Company, and Steven Spinner, a key player in GOVT’s
loan program office. Spinner, an Obama campaign bundler who raised millions for the
President and who had been appointed to his government position in exchange for his fund
raising, also had worked at McKinsey & Company and, according to his biography posted
by the Center for American Progress, had served as an active advisor and investor to Tesla.

e WITNESS was told that Rogers and Spinner were “rigging the game.” It was given
Spinner’s phone number and told to call Spinner and ask him why WITNESS’s ATVM loan
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application was not moving forward.

WITNESS texted Spinner and then called him. Spinner answered the phone and told
WITNESS words to the effect of “Do not ever call me again. The awards have already
been decided.”

On June 24, 2009, GOVT announced $8 billion in ATVM loans to Ford Motor Company
(“Ford”), Nissan North America, Inc. (“Nissan”) and Tesla. Tesla -- an WITNESS
competitor -- received an ATVM loan of $465 million at a rate of 1.6% from GOVT to
manufacture an expensive electric car.

On June 29, 2009, WITNESS wrote to Gerbsman again asking for action on its ATVM loan
application, pointing out that other lenders were hanging back until after GOVT issued its
term sheets, the offering document issued by GOVT that specifies the detailed terms and
conditions under which GOVT may enter into a Conditional Commitment with the
Applicant.

In the following weeks, authorized GOVT representatives repeatedly assured WITNESS
that “everything was fine”, “everything is on-track”, and “you [WITNESS] appear to meet
every criteria” with respect to an ATVM loan. WITNESS was even told that “we [GOVT]

should be able to announce [an approved ATVM loan] any day now...”

However, on August 21, 2009, Seward denied WITNESS’s ATVM loan application. See
Exhibits.

Seward, a known “White House lackey”, said WITNESS’s application was “determined to
be eligible” in accordance with the “evaluation criteria” in 10 C.F.R. §611,103 but GOVT
was “not in a position to award every eligible application [an ATVM loan].” He also said
necessity required GOVT to “choose applications that are most likely to use [ATVM loan]
proceeds in a way that will best achieve the goals of the program” and that WITNESS’s
application was rejected on this basis. He did not disclose the criteria GOVT used to weigh
competing qualified applications or explain why WITNESS fell short in the merit review.

WITNESS then asked GOVT to specify its reasons for denial.

In an email to GOVT’s Chris Foster, WITNESS requested GOVT’s merit review
documents and asked how GOVT technical evaluators could reasonably conduct a ten
month comparative merit review of WITNESS’s ATVM loan application without speaking
to any single company engineers or senior project staff member for more than 1% of the
time that GOVT staff attended to Tesla, Nissan Ford and Fisker during the same review
period.

On or about August 26, 2009, WITNESS called Foster.
Foster said GOVT had denied the application because Foster said WITNESS’s “electric

car did not use E85 gasoline, WITNESS was not planning on building “enough” cars,
WITNESS was not planning on selling cars to the government, WITNESS’s electric motors
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and batteries were too futuristic and not developed for commercial use, WITNESS’s car
was a “hydrogen car,” and WITNESS had underestimated the cost of metal body
fabrication.”

These “reasons” were baseless pretexts to protect Tesla, and other insider stock holdings,

that U.S. Senators and DOE executives held.

o None of WITNESS’s competitors that were given ATVM loans to build electric cars
used E85 gasoline in their vehicles.

o WITNESS’s car was designed to be easily scalable, using “off the shelf” parts from
existing commercial sources with multiple points of supply.

o WITNESS’s business plan specifically provided for large government and fleet sales.

o WITNESS’s “futuristic” electric motor and battery configuration had been in
commercial and government use for decades.

o WITNESS’s car was an electric car not a hydrogen car.

o WITNESS’s car body contained minimal amounts of metal, using safer and easier to
source and fabricate polymers and plastics.

Foster never provided WITNESS with GOVT’s merit review documents or described the
applicable evaluation criteria.

On September 21, 2009, WITNESS wrote to Chu requesting reconsideration of GOVT’s
ATVM loan denial. See Exhibits

WITNESS demonstrated that the stated reasons for GOVT’s denial were false. It asked Chu
to explain why GOVT staff repeatedly assured WITNESS that approval would be
forthcoming and that no additional information was necessary (leading WITNESS and its
principals to expend huge sums of money in reliance thereon), and why government-crony
companies that applied after WITNESS were reviewed earlier, given the benefit of
extensive access to and interaction with GOVT staff (a benefit denied to WITNESS), and
then awarded funds.

On October 23, 2009, Seward replied to WITNESS. See Exhibit 5. He did not answer
WITNESS’s questions. Instead, he backfilled with new but equally baseless reasons for
WITNESS’s rejection.

To begin with, Seward said that WITNESS’s application was “deemed Substantially
Complete on November 10, 2009.” In fact, WITNESS’s application had been deemed
substantially complete on December 31, 2008.

Seward said that the “proposed technology appeared...to be at a development stage and not
yet ready for commercialization” and that the “assumption that the vehicle concept would
be ready for production in three years” was a “significant weakness” due to the “high level
of risk associated with the design.” In fact, the WITNESS vehicle’s technology had been
in use commercially for years by the U.S. Department of Defense, NASA and the
automobile industry; the politically-connected companies that were awarded ATVM loan
funds were no further ahead in production than WITNESS; and elements of WITNESS’s
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“high risk design” were already in use by Toyota and Nissan.

Seward said “the proposed project’s impact on fuel economy...was determined to be
weak.” In fact, non-gasoline powered automobiles are uniformly recognized to offer the
most significant impact on fuel economy performance. And, the WITNESS vehicle
promised even better fuel economy than any of the ATVM loan “winners” (Tesla, Nissan,
Ford or Fisker) proposed or actually offers to this day.

Seward said “A review of the advanced fuels in your project and the feasibility of that
energy source...was [sic] questionable.” In fact, the fuels, products and sub parts of the
“questionable” energy source are readily available to consumers at REI Sporting Goods,
Amazon.com and Safeway supermarkets.

Seward said “A review of the calculations and assumptions supporting your claims for
reductions in petroleum use were deemed to be unrealistic.” In fact, over 200 institutional
research and white papers from respected government and university agencies from around
the world supported WITNESS’s claimed reductions.

Seward said that WITNESS’s project “may be commercializable [sic] in the future, but is
far too early in the development process to qualify” for an ATVM loan. In fact, WITNESS
was further along in the “development process” than the politically-connected companies
GOVT funded.

Seward’s letter was the first time any of these issues had been raised by GOVT with
WITNESS, notwithstanding ten months of “underwriting,” and multiple meetings, phone
calls, and emails. Incomprehensibly, GOVT had refused to consult with any of
WITNESS’s engineers and denied WITNESS the “interactive” review that had promised in
April and had in fact been provided to Tesla, Fisker, Nissan and Ford.

Defendants did not review WITNESS’s ATVM loan application in good faith and in
accordance with its regulations, policies and promises. Instead, it stonewalled WITNESS.

ATVM Application #3

Or about February 1, 2009, WITNESS (through Limnia) applied for a $15 million ATVM
loan to help fund work with GOVT’s own Sandia National Laboratories (“Sandia”) to
produce a “best of breed and state of the art” automobile energy storage system using
WITNESS’s patented fuel cell technology.

On April 10, 2009, Seward denied this application on the grounds that it “[did] not appear
to be designed for installation in an advanced technology vehicle...” See Exhibit 6. At all
times relevant, Defendants knew Seward’s claim was false and a mere pretext to preserve
ATVM loan funds for government-favored companies.

On April 11, 2009, WITNESS requested reconsideration, reminding Seward that the
relevant patents provided the technology was for use in advanced technology vehicles, that
Sandia’s vehicle technologies group was the prime subcontractor for the project, and that
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GOVT had funded the technology specifically for use in advanced technology vehicles.
See Exhibits.

On May 13, 2009, Seward again denied the application because the technology was “not
installed in the advanced technology vehicle.” This time, though, he asked for more
information. See Exhibits

On June 3, 2009, WITNESS again requested reconsideration, pointing out that the device
“must be installed prior to use in an advanced technology vehicle and are, accordingly,
designed for such installation, and therefore...‘qualifying components’” and answering
Seward’s other questions. See Exhibits.

Defendants never responded to this letter.

LGP Application (Application #4)

At all times relevant, WITNESS qualified for a LGP guarantee.

At all times relevant, GOVT recognized that the LGP application fees and process were
unduly onerous and burdensome.

On or about February 1, 2009, WITNESS participated in a conference call with John
Podesta, Chu and Interior Secretary Kenneth Salazar during which Chu promised to waive
the application fee.

On or about February 10, 2009, WITNESS (through Limnia) filed a LGP application with a
cover letter stating that it was WITNESS’s understanding that GOVT had waived the
application fee.

On February 26, 2009, GOVT’s Myrtle Gross called and said that the application fee of
$18,000 had to be paid and that funds needed to be wired by midnight for the LGP
application to be considered. This was WITNESS’s first notice from GOVT that the
agency had reneged on its promise to waive the LGP application fee.

WITNESS had access to the funds to make payment but could not complete the transaction
by the midnight deadline.

On February 27, 2009, Daniel Tobin, GOVT’s Loan Programs Office Senior Investment
Officer, called and said that there were “a few days of flexibility” to send in the application
fee and promised to provide wire instructions.

Tobin also promised to “pre-review” the application and to call back with feedback.

WITNESS never heard back from Tobin or anyone else at GOVT.

WITNESS repeatedly contacted Tobin by email, phone call and messenger, but neither he
nor anyone else at GOVT would respond or provide wire instructions.
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¢ Instead, on April 9, 2009, Tobin dismissed WITNESS from the LGP without recourse,
writing WITNESS that “due to non-remittance of the required application fee, your
application will not be reviewed.” See Exhibits

¢ GOVT ignored WITNESS’s request for reconsideration.

Defendants’ L.oan Program Abuses

* Because GOVT’s ATVM loan program and LGP were not transparent, and GOVT’s
underwriting criteria were easily skewed and manipulated by political officials, these
programs became cash cows for government cronies.

* To begin with, WITNESS discovered in or about end of Dec. 2008 that Seward, angered at
WITNESS’s public complaints about GOVT’s ATVM loan and LGP administration told his
staff in 2009 that it would be “a cold day in hell before I let [WITNESS] get any money.”
Seward used his power to arbitrarily and wrongly blackball WITNESS’s ATVM loan and
LGP applications.

¢ In February, 2011, GAO issued an investigative report on GOVT’s ATVM program. See
Exhibits “Advanced Technology Vehicle Loan Program Implementation Is Under Way, but
Enhanced Technical Oversight and Performance Measures Are Needed,” GAO-11-145 (Feb
28, 2011)(the “GAO ATVM Loan Report”). It found that GOVT had made billions in loans
without engaging “engineering expertise needed for technical oversight.... As a result,
GOVT cannot be adequately assured that the projects will be delivered as agreed.
[Furthermore], GOVT has not developed sufficient performance measures that would
enable it to fully assess the extent to which it has achieved its...program goals.”

e Intruth, GOVT’s ATVM loan program was nothing more than a veil for political officials
to steer hundreds of millions of taxpayer dollars to government cronies, including Tesla and
Fisker.

e For example, Tesla’s loan of $465 million was announced on June 24, 2009.

e This loan was obtained in material part through the efforts and influence of Steven Westly
who had “bundled” hundreds of thousands of dollars in political contributions. Westly sat
on Tesla’s board from March 2007 to December 2009, the time period in which GOVT
made the ATVM loan.

¢ In consideration for his financial contributions, Westly was given unusual Executive
Branch access and an appointment on a key advisory board counseling Chu. This allowed
Westly to help shape GOVT policy to advance his personal business interests.

e  GOVT’s Spinner, who played a key role in the ATVM loan program, was also a political
“bundler,” and a former Tesla investor and advisor.

¢ Additionally, Tesla’s founder and CEO also made large political contributions to
Democrats, including President Obama, in or about 2008.
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On November 12, 2012, Tesla notified the Securities and Exchange Commission that:

On January 20, 2010, we entered into a loan facility with the Federal Financing Bank
(FFB), and The U.S. Government (GOVT), pursuant to the Advanced Technology
Vehicles Manufacturing (ATVM) Incentive Program. This loan facility was amended in
June 2011 to expand our cash investment options, in February 2012 to modify the
timing of certain future financial covenants and funding of the debt service reserve
account, and in June 2012 to allow us to effect certain initiatives in our business plan.
We entered into another amendment with the GOVT in September 2012 to remove our
obligation to comply with the current ratio financial covenant as of September 30, 2012
and amend the timing of pre-funding the principal payment due in June 2013. Under
the GOVT Loan Facility, the FFB has made available to us two multi-draw term loan
facilities in an aggregate principal amount of up to $465.0 million. Up to an aggregate
principal amount of $101.2 million had been made available under the first term loan
facility to finance up to 80% of the costs eligible for funding for the powertrain
engineering and the build out of a facility to design and manufacture lithium-ion battery
packs, electric motors and electric components (the Powertrain Facility). Up to an
aggregate principal amount of $363.9 million has been made available under the
second term loan facility to finance up to 80% of the costs eligible for funding for the
development of, and to build out the manufacturing facility for, our Model S sedan (the
Model S Facility). Under the GOVT Loan Facility, we are responsible for the remaining
20% of the costs eligible for funding under the ATVM Program for the projects as well
as any cost overruns for each project. As of August 31, 2012, we have fully drawn down
the aforementioned facilities.

Also on November 12, 2012, with $465 million of taxpayer money spent, Tesla reported
delivering a grand total of 256 vehicles for sale to customers.

Fisker’s ATVM loan of $528.7 million was announced on September 22, 2009,
approximately a month after Seward rejected WITNESS’s application for a $40 million
ATVM loan.

This loan was obtained in material part through the efforts and influence of John Doerr, a
major political contributor and government crony. At all times relevant, Doerr was a
partner in the investment firm of Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield & Byers, along with former
Vice President Al Gore, among others.

Kleiner, Perkins was a major Fisker investor. Doerr and his partners donated millions to the
2008 Obama campaign and related political causes, obtaining in exchange preferential
access and treatment for their business interests. Among other things, Doerr’s political
contributions produced high-level Executive Branch access and a seat on the President’s
Council on Jobs and Competitiveness.

When GOVT announced Fisker’s half-a-billion dollar loan facility, it claimed that Fisker’s
ATVM loan would “create or save about 5,000 jobs for domestic parts suppliers” by
funding “two lines of plug-in hybrids.” Approximately $169.3 million of taxpayer funds
were for “engineering integration” need for final assembly of a high-cost electric luxury car
in Finland. Approximately $359 million of taxpayer funds was for manufacturing a low-
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cost plug-in hybrid sedan in the U.S. through “Project Kx.” See Exhibits“Conditional
Commitment Letter by and between United States Department of Energy and Fisker
Automotive, Inc. — Execution Copy (September 18, 2009).

When GOVT approved Fisker’s loan, the Project Kx car did not exist, not even in
prototype. Upon information and belief, GOVT lacked even detailed engineering and
production specifications for the car. Nevertheless, Defendants parroted Fisker’s claim that
“up to 75,000-100,000 [Project Kx] vehicles will roll off assembly lines in the U.S. every
year beginning in late 2012” to justify the Kx loan.

In 2011, Fisker promised that the Kx vehicle, which had yet to be publicly show, would be
in mass production by the end of 2012.

In or about February, 2012, after Fisker had borrowed over $170 million, GOVT froze
Fisker’s ATVM loan credit facility because Fisker missed key production milestones.

In or about June, 2012, Fisker finally revealed the Project Kx prototype, a “low cost”
$55,000 auto called the “Atlantic.”

On or about October 18, 2012, Fisker reported that Atlantic production would be delayed
until 2014 or 2015.

Since 2008, Fisker has sold approximately 1,500 vehicles world-wide.

Upon information and belief, the over $170 million in taxpayer
money GOVT has given to Fisker has “saved or created” fifty or fewer jobs.

Defendants’ L. GP Abuse

In March, 2012, and in response to complaints by WITNESS and others, GAO issued an
investigative report on GOVT’s LGP performance. See Exhibits “GOVT Loan Guarantees:
Further Actions Needed to Improve Tracking and Review of Applications,” GAO-12-157
(March, 2012). GAO found that GOVT treated LGP applicants inconsistently, favoring
some and disadvantaging others; lacked systematic mechanisms for LGP applicants to
administratively appeal its decisions; often ignored its own underwriting standards and
skipping review steps; and re-reviewed rejected applications on an ad hoc basis. In fact,
GOVT’s “Omitting or poorly documenting reviews reduces LGP’s assurance that it has
treated applicants fairly and equitably.”

In October, 2012, emails were released confirming that at least a number of LGP decisions
were based on political factors not GOVT’s stated evaluation criteria. See e.g. Exhibits
(Email from Jonathan Silver, former Executive Director, GOVT Loan Programs Office, to
James C. McCrea, GOVT LPO credit adviser, dated June 25, 2010, stating “WH wants to
move Abound [project] forward. Policy will have to wait...”); Exhibits (Email from James
C. McCrea to B. Oakley stating “Pressure is on real heavy...due to interest from VP”);
Exhibits (Email from Monique Fridell to Kimberly Heimert, et al. dated May 25, 2010
stating “GOVT has made a political commitment to get Unistar through the approval
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process by 6/15”; Exhibit 17 (Email from James C. McCrea to Monique Fridell dated June
1, 2010 stating “Secretary [of Energy]...is adamant that this transaction is going to OMB
by the end of the day Fri if not sooner. Not a way to do things but a direct order™)

* GOVT bent the rules for political allies such as Sen. Harry Reid and Rep. Steny Hoyer,
while government crony companies received special personal access to high-ranking
GOVT officials. See e.g. Exhibits (Email from James C. McCrea to “barbiar” dated
December 5, 2009 stating “[Harry] Reid may be desperate. WH may want to help. Short
term considerations may be more important than long term considerations and what’s a
billion anyhow?”); Exhibits (Email from James C. McCrea to Julie Stewart dated May 25,
2010 stating “7" Floor has decided mid June CRB...there has been a commitment from S1
[Secretary Chu] to Steny Hoyer on this. Nothing like over committing and under
delivering”; Exhibits (Email from Brightsource Chairman John Woolard, an LGP applicant,
to Jonathan Silver, GOVT Loan Office Director dated November 10, 2010 stating “Thanks
for offering to meet at your house tomorrow morning.” Silver replied “Came [sic] anytime.
Guest bedroom is ready.”). Defendants regularly slept with each other and at each others
homes.

Defendants’ Overall Abuse Of, And Harms To, WITNESS

¢ Defendants’ wrongdoing abused and severely damaged WITNESS.

¢  When Defendants “fixed” the ATVM loan and LGP programs to benefit government
cronies, they knowingly and intentionally rendered the ATVM loan and LGP applications
by WITNESS and other similarly situated companies futile and meaningless.

¢ Defendants intentionally induced WITNESS and others similarly situated though multiple
written and verbal representations from GOVT officials with actual and apparent authority
to bind GOVT, to spend hundreds of thousands of dollars and invest thousands of hours of
engineering and professional time on a meaningless snipe hunt.

¢ Defendants’ administration of the ATVM loan program effectively dried up all alternative
sources of capital and denied WITNESS and others similarly situated access to private
financing by delaying term sheets and/or wrongly denying ATVM loans, among other
things. Defendants had actual or constructive knowledge that delaying or denying a small
company’s ATVM loan application would be as a business death sentence.

e Chu and Seward skewed, manipulated and fixed GOVT’s ATVM loan review process
against WITNESS and other companies similarly situated to protect and advance the
business and political interests of government cronies and caused WITNESS’s ATVM loan
and LGP applications to be rejected on false bases and flimsy pretexts.

e For example:

a. Government cronies who applied for the ATVM loan after WITNESS were reviewed
earlier, walked through the “underwriting” process by GOVT staff and given the benefit
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of unique agency interaction, and then awarded funds.

GOVT staff first issued over 20 documents, public statements, policy notices,
powerpoints and other materials verifying that ATVM loans would be processed on a
“first-come, first served” basis. Because crony companies did not submit applications in
a timely fashion, GOVT subsequently altered this policy in mid-stream.

GOVT paid outside, unqualified technical reviewers to conduct pre-textual diligence
and application reviews. WITNESS spoke with Carol Battershel, who stated she was
the due diligence technical lead on WITNESS’s application. She said she had gotten
everything she needed “off [WITNESS’s] website.” GOVT reviewers never talked to
WITNESS’s founder, inventor, engineers, project leads or primary contractors, and
refused to speak with WITNESS’s engineers, even after WITNESS’s engineers called
and visited them to offer data and other information.

GOVT officials directed Argonne National Laboratory staff to manipulate data in order
to favor certain applicants.

GOVT employees were ordered by senior GOVT and Executive Branch political
officials to ignore non-favored applicants until deadlines had passed to shrink the
applicant pool.

GOVT ignored standard commercial bank loan processes, including the use of
competent engineers to carry out technical review and the consistent application of the
same underwriting criteria to each loan application. Instead, the “loan review process”
was intentionally manipulated, bypassed or stalled, to ensure that funds were given to
government favored “winners” but not to WITNESS or other companies that lacked
large political contributions and special Executive Branch access.

The ATVM loan funds distribution date was repeatedly manipulated by Defendants to
frustrate WITNESS and other similarly situated companies’ efforts to attract private
investors, thereby starving WITNESS of capital.

Political officials made review and “underwriting” decisions.

GOVT staff told WITNESS and others that GOVT was out of money and thus ATVM
loan applications could not advance. However, the ATVM loan fund was never out of
money and, indeed, a “carve out” of appropriated funds was “held” for government
cronies who made political contributions and hired political fixers to obtain “top-tier
status” and “special relationships” with GOVT.

GOVT eased expectations for projected car sales volume by Fisker, a favored crony
company with close ties to senior political officials in the White House, after GOVT had
conditionally approved an approximate $560 million loan, and then made allowances for
scaling back projections in the final loan agreement, and then renegotiated loan terms to
ameliorate Fisker’s cash flow crisis in the weeks before the 2012 Presidential election.
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k. GOVT applied different metrics to ATVM loan applicants based on political connections
and contributions.

l. GOVT promised to waive the LGP application fee. Within hours of the due date, GOVT
reneged. The next day, GOVT contacted WITNESS promising to accept late payment.
Again, GOVT reneged.

m. GOVT hid the “merit review” data, reviewer identities, reviewer work histories, and
other information from WITNESS, all other ATVM loan applicants and the public. This
information, if disclosed, would have allowed for an open and transparent loan process
and allowed WITNESS and others to evaluate the efficacy of GOVT’s merit review.

n. GOVT willfully, intentionally and substantially overestimated government crony
company production capabilities and sales performance to justify its approval of ATVM
loans. For example, GOVT promised that Fisker alone would have “75,000 — 100,000”
ATVM loan-funded cars rolling off of U.S. assembly lines. In 2012, Ford, Nissan, Fisker
and Tesla (the ATVM loan “winners”) combined sold fewer than 25,000 ATVM loan-
funded vehicles nationwide.

o. Applicant’s 2008 benefits application was hacked and manipulated by public officials in
order to engage in reprisal, retribution and revenge against Applicant for reporting about
a federal crime involving public officials. Applicant has been waiting for his proper
benefits payments since 2008. Investigations have proven that government officials were
ordered to not approve Applicant as reprisal/vendetta punishment for his testimony
against public officials with access to government records operations, records and
determinations.

p. The majority of Applicant’s injuries came from his contractor/employment work for the
Government.

g. The majority of Applicant’s injuries were never investigated by government officials in
an unbiased or conclusive manner per word scans of government officials records.

r. Government officials that met with, or interacted, with Applicant concurrently, or later,
ended up working for his political/business enemies and bragged about that fact in their
emails, voicemails, text messages, social media postings, photo postings and other
media. They were biased to harm Applicant.

s. Government official “Mario U” harassed, threatened, defamed and cyber-stalked
Applicant in political reprisal and the government owes Applicant monetary damages
for those actions by compromised government officials. The government officials
emails, social media postings, texts, recorded conversations and other records prove that
they acted in a biased and threatening manner towards Applicant for reprisal/vendetta
purposes. A FOIA has been filed for all recordings of the meeting between Applicant
and government officials. All records, discussing, referring, or relating to all meetings or
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communications between Administration staff and Applicant and their representatives
including minutes of those meetings, or any memorandum written about these meetings
by Administration employees and contractors who were present has been demanded.
The FBI, a third party with a fountain pen video camera and/or a cell phone, in addition
to government recordings, are thought to exist for this CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATION
incident. While there have been a lot of concerns lately about efforts to misuse
"wiretapping" laws that forbid any recordings of people without their knowledge, it
appears at least a few courts are recognizing how silly that is. Yet another court has now
said that secretly recording a conversation -- in this case with an iPhone -- is okay,
assuming there was no crime committed with the recording, and the recording was for a
legitimate purpose. As the court noted: "The defendant must have the intent to use the
illicit recording to commit a tort of crime beyond the act of recording itself." That makes
sense. The act of recording alone, shouldn't be a criminal act, as it really depends on
what is being done with the recording. And, in an age where not only is recording
everything easier, but for some becoming standard, requiring permission to record all
audio seems like an outdated concept. Using an iPhone to secretly record a conversation
is not a violation of the Wiretap Act if done for legitimate purposes, a federal appeals
court has ruled. "The defendant must have the intent to use the illicit recording to
commit a tort of crime beyond the act of recording itself," (.pdf) the 2nd U.S. Circuit
Court of Appeals ruled. The decision by the 2nd U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals, which
involves a civil lawsuit over a secret audio recording produced from the 99-cent
Recorder app, mirrors decisions in at least three other federal appeals courts. The
lawsuit concerns a family dispute over the making of a dying mother's will. Days before
the Connecticut woman died, her son secretly recorded a kitchen conversation between
the son, mother, stepfather and others over how to handle her estate after her death. The
son, in a probate dispute, turned over the audio file to the court in 2008 to bolster his
position concerning the estate of his late mother, who died without a will. The stepfather
sued him, alleging a privacy breach under the Wiretap Act. A federal judge dismissed the
case, and the stepfather appealed. The appeals court ruled that, even if the son consented
to his own taping, he could be sued for money damages for a breach of the Wiretap Act
if and only if he did so with a nefarious intent. "We affirm, and, in so doing, hold that
the exception to the one-party consent provision of 18 U.S.C. § 2511(2)(d) requires that
a communication be intercepted for the purpose of a tortious or criminal act that is
independent of the intentional act of recording," the New York-based federal appeals
court said.

The Inspector General has supplied certified federal records of numerous
vendetta/reprisal attacks by government officials against other American citizens as
reprisal/vendetta acts.

All of the U.S. Inspector General offices for ALL agencies have documented thousands
of vendetta/reprisal attacks by State and Federal public officials.
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An ongoing practice of vendetta/reprisal attacks by State and Federal public officials
exists and operates within government agencies.

The volume and scope of vendetta/reprisal attacks by State and Federal public officials
uncovered against Applicant proves that he is a “targeted whistle-blower”.

The hackers, by name, (Listed in the Exhibits) have been identified by FBI, CIA, DIA,
NSA and FinCEN as having hacked and having great ease to hack government servers
and that some of them were employed by Applicant’s enemies including working in the
political offices of public officials (particularly U.S. Senators) who competed with or
were adversarial to Applicant in their, or their family business dealings.

Applicant worked over 60 hours per week for many decades based on assurances from
the government that he would receive, at least, $1400.00 per month upon retirement but
the government assurances, to WITNESS, were false.

The government only pays Applicant $778.00 per month while Applicant’s peers receive
$3000.00 per month from the government while his ARRESTED adversaries and
competitors receive over $10,000.00 per month from the government.

All government agencies represent the “United States Government” and it is a false
assertion for the agencies under the United States Government to have denied
responsibility for their actions.

The United States Government asked Applicant to invest his life savings in a
government energy program and defrauded Applicant out of his life-savings, years of his
time and his pending profits while providing those same profits to his competitors and to
his elected representatives who were financial partners and shareholders with those
competitors.

The IRS, GOVT and other agencies were sued in Federal Court and LOST the court
hearings as they WERE found to be engaging the abuse of government offices for
vendetta/reprisal attacks. Those Plaintiffs were compensated but WITNESS has not
received his compensation. There was an ongoing failure to adequately respond to
Applicant's requests which is damaging Applicant via accruing monetary harms on a
daily basis. Applicant and Applicant’s advocates have provided over two million pages
of FBI-quality evidence, proving all of the assertions herein, via hard drives and online
file repositories. At no time has the government ever provided written statements
disputing any of the criminal charges in this matter. The website at
http://www.majestic111.com is an example of thousands of evidence repositories posted
online about this case.

Applicant has filed federal RICO charge referrals in this matter with DOJ.

By with-holding and blockading Applicant’s funds, SSA and other government agencies
have prevented Applicant from having access to adequate legal representation. In
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previously provided documents Applicant’s advocates have provided extensive legal
references and proofs that such blocking of Applicant’s legal representation by via the
with-holding of government funds is illegal.

Applicant has never received a response to his multiple SSA Form 561-U2 or 7008
filings Applicant has filed multiple letters confirming that there should be no blank
years in is earnings statement and has received no responsive action from SSA on those
assertions and the hundreds of work proof reference letters, videos and press clippings
he provided proving the assertions. SSA and The U.S. Government owes Applicant
monies for damages caused by government actions, harms and inaction.

Applicant has provided the government with the medical records of other U.S. citizens
that were sent to Applicant by the government in violation of federal HIPPA laws. The
government said that the record’s were Applicant’s yet they had other people’s names,
SS#s and medical information. This is one of many evidence items that clearly prove
that Applicant’s records were manipulated, confused, and mismanaged by government
staff. To be clear, government officials sent the medical records of multiple other
citizens to Applicant in violation of HIPPA laws and those other parties privacy rights.

Government officials told Applicant, in meetings at the San Francisco government
offices, in 2007 and 2008, that he was fully qualified, with government credits.
Applicant demands his funds for his damages and the back-owed monies.

Defendants employed spy agency “dirty tricks” campaigns against Plaintiff.

The attacks and harms against Plaintiff included the
following actions:
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- DEFRAUDING PLAINTIFFS:

Government agency bosses solicited the targets with false promises of future loans,
carbon credit sales, billions of dollars of stock market valuation profits, contracts and/or
grants from their agencies and caused the target Plaintiffs to expend millions of dollars
and years of their time for projects which those government bosses had covertly
promised to their friends. They used the target Plaintiffs as a “smokescreen” to cover
their illegal government slush-funds for the Plaintiffs competitors and personal enemies.
By using this tactic, the attackers drained the target Plaintiffs funds and forced Plaintiffs
into an economic disaster, without the government bosses fearing any reprisal for their
scam. The crony insiders made hundreds of billions of dollars in profit in the notorious
Solyndra-type scandals as seen in the CBS 60 Minutes episode: “The Cleantech
Crash”, thousands of TV news segments and the related GAO and Congressional
corruption reports.
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- MOLES AND SPYING:

White House financier Kleiner Perkins placed moles inside of Plaintiffs companies in
order to sabotage, delay and misdirect operations. The moles were discovered to be staff
of Kleiner Perkins. The main offices of Kleiner Perkins were broken into, per San Mateo
County police reports, and records of corruption copied or duplicated by a state-
sponsored intelligence agency entity, which provided further proof that Kleiner Perkins
and the White House were exchanging Quid Pro Quo.

- BLOCKADES OF LEGAL COUNSEL RIGHTS:

- Government officials and the federal agency: Legal Services Corporation (LSC
corporation -A federal agency dedicated to providing legal services to citizens)
blockaded Plaintiffs rights to legal representation in order to prevent Plaintiffs from
personally suing the attackers because such a lawsuit would have embarrassed corrupt
public officials. High tech law firms that were discussing a services agreement with
Plaintiffs were threatened and ordered to not help Plaintiffs or “they would be black-
listed or be cut-off from tens of millions of dollars of Google, Netflix, Facebook and
government contracts”. Individual lawyers were threatened with black-listing and
getting “flooded with more filings than you could ever respond to in your life-time...”
LSC officials, who were almost entirely Obama Administration associates, refused to
assist with lawyer referrals. That is a violation of their federal contract with The U.S.
Government .

- HIRED CHARACTER ASSASSINATION AND DEFAMATION SERVICES:

An sophisticated animated attack film was produced by Google/Youtube and Nicholas
Denton attacking Plaintiffs. An animated film is an expensive effort involving
considerable time and expense. An attacker must be well financed to undertake such an
effort. The film was published on YouTube and locked onto the very top search result
line on every YouTube search in front of 7.5 billion internet users for over a decade. The
damage to Plaintiffs reputation is estimated in the tens of millions of dollars. YouTube
steadfastly refused to remove or adjust the search results even though YouTube
executives knew Plaintiffs and knew that the video represented a character assassination
attempt against Plaintiffs because YouTube owners finance the political campaigns of
the public officials who ordered the attacks. While Google/YouTube stated to Congress
that all of it’s search results are arbitrary, the never-moving search result of this attack
video proved that Google’s and YouTube’s search results are manually manipulated by
human maintained black-lists. The corrupt officials hired Nicholas Guido Denton and
his character-assassination-for-hire sleazy tabloid publication empire known as Gawker
Media AKA Gizmodo Media. They own Gawker, Gizmodo, Jalopnik and a number of
fake news sites based in the USA and near-Russian regions. The offshore sites are used
for money laundering and tax evasion. The FBI has been asked to interview and
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financially trace the payments and command-and-control orders back and forth between
Nicholas Guido Denton and his attacker/operatives: Ian Fette, Adrian Covert, Nick
Cook, Gabrielle Darbyshire, John Hermann, Patrick George, et al and Google. All of
whom transferred payments and communications between each other to conspire,
operate, produce and publish the articles, videos, blogs and server manipulations for the
attacks against the victims around the world. These attacks resulted in billions of dollars
of damages to the victims. The orders for these attacks can be traced back to The White
House.

- FACTORY PROCESSED SOCIAL MEDIA ATTACKS:

Social networking sites including MeetUp, Match, Facebook, etc. and all other IAC-
owned, or similar, sites (IAC is managed by Hillary Clinton's daughter, whose Mother
knew Plaintiffs) have had their profiles, texts, and inter-member communications, since
those companies were started, hacked or purchased. The financiers of almost everyone
of these sites are also the financiers of the suspects. The attack service providers use
Palantir, Acronym, In-Q-Tel financed data analysis software to analyze every activity in
those services in order to find honey-trap, blackmail and social conflict exploitation
opportunities. Your social life will, essentially, end. Every photo on every social site is
cross checked with every other photo on the internet in order to cull your Facebook,
Linkedin, Snapchat and other social media together to create a total manipulation profile
data file on you. New contacts on these sites were contacted by the attackers and told to
“avoid” the Plaintiffs in order to damage Plaintiffs.

- GOVERNMENT BENEFITS BLOCKADES AND MANIPULATIONS:

Social Security, SSI, SDI, Disability and other earned benefits were stone-walled.
Applications for benefits for the Plaintiffs were intentionally “lost” like a “Lois Lerner
hard drive”. Files in the application process “disappeared”. A U.S. Senator ordered
Plaintiffs benefits to “never be approved” even though Plaintiffs worked 60 hour+
weeks for decades in service to their nation and their community. A SSA official in the
local SSA office, who had a devout expressed hatred against one United States President
ordered a benefits blockade against Plaintiffs because he found out that Plaintiffs ex-
lawyer now worked in the White House. Forensic evidence and backgrounders on every
person who worked on, or had access to, Applicants files, records, benefits decisions and
related data sets shows that a number of those employees and contractors were
members, financiers, web promoters or supporters of ANTIFA anarchy groups or KKK
or Proud Boys related political activist-type groups. In San Francisco and Marin
Counties SSA offices, in employees workspaces and on their Facebook and MySpace
sites, many employees proudly display pictures of themselves wearing their pink "pussy
hats", black riot gear and sporting political tattoos. FBI records and IG investigations
show that SSA has the highest percentage of political activist employees of any federal
agency. Such persons are inclined to become drunk with power when allowed access to
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the trillions of dollars of government technology on the SSA file and decisions systems.
A number of these persons have worked for, or with, U.S. Senators and other politicians
who targeted Applicant in political reprisal. At least 3 persons in the San Francisco SSA
office, at least 2 persons in the San Mateo SSA office and at least 2 persons in Marin
SSA office are known to have engaged in such actions. Applicants funding and benefits
were manipulated, so as to harm Applicant, as political reprisal as vendetta for his
provision of testimony to federal investigators in a trillion dollar political corruption
matter involving famous political figures featured in global news coverage. A vast
number of agency abuse cases and lawsuits are now on public record in the Inspector
General's offices and federal courts. It is an indisputable fact that some government
agencies run "hit-jobs" on citizens on orders from certain corrupt politicians.

These actions are felony violations of the law. Federal and State Agencies including
SSA, FEC, GOVT, HHS, VA, CIA, HUD, SA, SEC, FBI, DOJ and many others, have
been charged, and found guilty, in these crimes against citizens. In the Congressional
investigation published by the United States Congress in review of the U.S. Department
of Energy LGP/ATVM programs, it is clearly proven that the U.S. Department of
Energy was used as a slush-fund by some GOVT executives in order to pay off
campaign financiers by attacking and sabotaging their competitors. The GOVT Paducah
Gaseous Diffusion Plant under contracts with The U.S. Government and the
government-owned U.S. Enrichment Corp paid $5M whistle-blower awards to those
whistle-blowers who were attacked, using government agency resources, for reporting a
crime. Dept. of Energy Hanford URS has agreed to settle a lawsuit brought by former
employee Walter Tamosaitis for $4.1 million.

The settlement in the whistle-blower case comes almost one year before the case was set
for a jury trial in federal court in Richland and compensates Tamosaitis for attacks
against him, by GOVT officials, in retribution for reporting a crime. VA officials
attacked hundreds of citizens who reported corruption, ie:
https://www.thenewamerican.com/usnews/health-care/item/18610-va-whistleblowers-
facing-retribution. As shown in this report: https://www.pogo.org/analysis/2018/08/new-
report-confirms-whistleblower-retaliation-is-alive-and-well-at-department-of-veterans-
affairs/, Agencies attack often and harshly. CIA and NSA executives have been widely
shown to use spy tools to attack domestic citizens they don't like, ie:
https://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-2435011/NS A-employees-used-phone-
tapping-tools-spy-girlfriends-cheating-husbands.html , and hundreds of other news links
that can be provided. Elon Musk and Tesla, as well as Eric Schmidt and Larry Page at
Google, have been proven to use the CIA group: IN-Q-TEL, to run government
sponsored/financed attacks on business competitors. In Civil Action No. 1:13-cv-00777-
RBW GOVERNMENT AGENCIES WERE CAUGHT BEING USED FOR ATTACKS
AGAINST CITIZENS AND PUNISHED IN THE COURT AND THE MEDIA! The
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IRS, and hordes of other government agencies have been caught and proven, IN
COURT, to target and attack people for presumed political differences.

Why should we assume that the Social Security Administration is not ALSO doing this
too to harm citizens who speak out? The Lois Lerner IRS attacks took many years to
resolve. In an unprecedented victorious conclusion to a four year-long legal battle
against the IRS, the bureaucratic agency admitted in federal court that it wrongfully
targeted citizens, during the Obama Administration, because of their political viewpoints
and issued an apology to those people for doing so. In addition, the IRS is consenting to
a court order that would prohibit it from ever engaging in this form of unconstitutional
discrimination in the future. In a proposed Consent Order filed with the Court, the IRS
has apologized for its treatment of U.S. citizens including organizations from 20 states
that applied for 501(c)(3) and (c)(4) tax-exempt status with the IRS between 2009 and
2012 -- during the tax-exempt determinations process. Crucially, following years of
denial by the IRS and blame-shifting by IRS officials, the agency now expressly admits
that its treatment of our clients was wrong and a total violation of our Democracy. As set
forth in the proposed Order: “The IRS admits that its treatment of Plaintiffs during the
tax-exempt determinations process, including screening their applications based on their
names or policy positions, subjecting those applications to heightened scrutiny and
inordinate delays, and demanding of some Plaintiffs’ information that TIGTA
determined was unnecessary to the agency’s determination of their tax-exempt status,
was wrong.

For such treatment, the IRS expresses its sincere apology.” Throughout litigation of this
case, activists have remained committed to protecting the rights of the public who faced
unlawful and discriminatory action by the IRS and other agencies. The objective from
the very beginning has been to hold agencies accountable for corrupt practices.

This Consent Order represents a historic victory for the public and sends the
unequivocal message that a government agency’s targeting of citizens organizations, or
any organization, on the basis of political viewpoints, will never be tolerated and that
revenge will be swift and vast. The Order will put an end, once and for all, to the
abhorrent practices utilized against citizens, as the agreement includes the IRS’s express
acknowledgment of — and apology for — its wrongful treatment of the public. While this
agreement is designed to prevent any such practices from occurring again, rest assured
that all public interest lawyers will remain vigilant to ensure that the IRS, SSA, DOJ or
SEC does not resort to such tactics in the future. Per detailed reports, in March of 2012
lawyers began being contacted by literally dozens of citizens and groups who were
being harassed by the Obama IRS after submitting applications for tax-exempt status.
Their tax-exempt applications were held up for years (over seven years in some cases),
and they began receiving obtrusive and unconstitutional requests for donor and member
information. That began a now more than five and a half year fight with the burgeoning
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bureaucracy at the IRS. Then on May 10, 2013, Lois Lerner, the then head of the IRS
Tax Exempt Organizations Division, publicly implicated the IRS in one of the worst
political targeting scandals of the century.

This is an extraordinary victory against government agency abuse. It sends a powerful
warning to the deep state bureaucracy that it will not be allowed to violate the
Constitution in order to silence and shut down the whistle-blowers. In addition to the
IRS’s admissions of and apology for its wrongful conduct, the Consent Order would
specifically award Plaintiffs the following: - A declaration by the Court that it is wrong
to apply the United States tax code to any tax-exempt applicant or entity based solely on
such entity’s name, any lawful positions it espouses on any issues, or its associations or
perceived associations with a particular political movement, position or viewpoint; - A
declaration by the Court that any action or inaction taken by the IRS must be applied
evenhandedly and not based solely on a tax-exempt applicant or entity’s name, political
viewpoint, or associations or perceived associations with a particular political
movement, position or viewpoint; and - A declaration by the Court that discrimination
on the basis of political viewpoint in administering the United States tax code violates
fundamental First Amendment rights.

Disparate treatment of taxpayers based solely on the taxpayers’ names, any lawful
positions the taxpayers espouse on any issues, or the taxpayers’ associations or
perceived associations with a particular political movement, position or viewpoint is
unlawful. In the Order, the IRS has also agreed that (unless expressly required by law)
certain actions against the Plaintiffs— i.e. the sharing, dissemination, or other use of
information unnecessarily obtained by the IRS during the determinations process (such
as donor names, the names of volunteers, political affiliations of an organization’s
officers, etc.) — would be unlawful. In addition, the IRS promises not to take any
retaliatory action against our clients for exposing the targeting scheme. Finally, and of
crucial significance, the IRS admits it targeted persons and groups based on their
viewpoints (i.e., “policy positions”) and that such viewpoint discrimination violates
fundamental First Amendment rights. This is the first time the IRS has admitted that its
targeting scheme was not just “inappropriate” — as TIGTA found — but, as alleged,
blatantly unconstitutional.

To ensure consistency and uniformity within the agency’s operations going forward, the
IRS is required, pursuant to the Order, to inform all employees within the Exempt
Organizations Division, as well as the Commissioners and Deputy Commissioners
within other divisions, of the Order’s terms. This Order not only validates allegations
about their treatment at the hands of the corrupt Obama-era IRS but also provides
important assurances to the American public that the agency understands its obligation
to refrain from further such discriminatory conduct. As Attorney General Sessions
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acknowledged in this regard, “[t]here is no excuse for [the IRS’s] conduct,” as it is
“without question” that the First Amendment prohibits the conduct that occurred here,
i.e., subjecting American citizens to disparate treatment “based solely on their viewpoint
or ideology.” Sessions further confirmed his Department’s commitment to ensuring that
the “abuse of power” in which the IRS engaged here “will not be tolerated.” It is
impossible to overstate the importance of this victory.

This marks a years-long fight for justice in defense of the constitutional rights of the
public. This is an extraordinary victory against abuse of power and corruption. It sends a
powerful warning to the deep state bureaucracy that it will not be allowed to violate the
Constitution and manipulate the IRS, SSA and other agencies in order to silence and
shut down those who speak out about political corruption crimes. In the wake of
Wisconsin Watchdog’s investigation into SSA staff allegations of incompetence,
misconduct, and retaliation in Social Security disability appeals offices, several
employees have taken their complaints to a Senate committee led by Wisconsin Sen.
Ron Johnson.

An official with knowledge of the complaints said the Senate Homeland Security and
Governmental Affairs Committee, chaired by the Oshkosh Republican, has received
emails and other contacts from “certain people” inside the Social Security
Administration’s Office of Disability Adjudication and Review. The initial complaints
came from an employee inside the Milwaukee office following Wisconsin Watchdog’s
opening investigative report that found some claimants waiting more than 1,000 days for
an appeals decision on their disability benefits claim. Following Wednesday’s story of a
whistle-blower in the Madison ODAR office, the committee has received more specific
complaints about retaliation against employees, the source said. Committee staff
members sent the latest Watchdog piece to SSA administrators hoping they will
“cooperate,” the source said. To date, the agency has been less than cooperative. “This is
an ongoing process, and they are not always as forthcoming as we’d like them to be,”
the source said. “Hopefully with your continued reporting, this is an issue they can’t
duck.” A Senate committee member said officials there are working with the Office of
Special Counsel on “multiple whistle-blower retaliation claims.” The committee
continues to request information from the SSA. The whistle-blower in the Madison
office claims management retaliated against her after she was called to testify in a
misconduct case.

The incident involved “inappropriate behavior” by an administrative law judge, she said.
“They are so corrupt. It’s absolutely horrible,” said the woman, a lead case technician in
the Madison Office of Disability Adjudication and Review. She spoke on condition of
anonymity, fearing more retribution from her supervisors. While she said recounting her
particular experiences will more than likely betray her identity anyway, the ODAR case
worker insisted she has had enough. “I’m at point where they don’t care about me, I
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don’t see why I'm protecting them. This is my last resort,” she said. “I want to do my
work without fear of retaliation.” She said she has contacted the Senate committee. “I
forwarded my information to them and I got an email back from them. See these reports:

jj. WSJ: 131 Federal Judges Broke L.aw by Hearing Cases Where They Had Financial
Interest...

Dirty profits from bench...

https://www.wsj.com/articles/hidden-interest-judges-financial-conflicts-graphic-
11632834079

https://www.wsj.com/articles/131-federal-judges-broke-the-law-by-hearing-cases-
where-they-had-a-financial-interest-11632834421

kk. They said people are coming out of the woodwork with their complaints (about ODAR)
following your story,” the whistle-blower said. Ronald Klym, a long-time senior legal
assistant in the Milwaukee ODAR office, alleges he has been retaliated against by
supervisors for going public with his charges of incompetence and misconduct in the
agency. The federal employee, who has worked for SSA for 16 years, provided
Wisconsin Watchdog with documents showing extremely long wait times for claimants
appealing their denied applications for benefits. Doug Nguyen, SSA regional
spokesman, in a previous story said the agency acknowledges that Milwaukee ODAR
has a “high average processing time for disability appeal hearings, and we are working
to address the issue.” Beyond the delays is what Klym calls the “shell game,” the
wholesale transferring of cases to other parts of the country by administrators to make
the Milwaukee office’s numbers look better than they are. The Madison office whistle-
blower confirmed Klym'’s allegations, saying at one point she saw 2,000 cases from the
Milwaukee office handed off to the Oak Brook operation. There are over 10,000 SSA
disability manipulation charges against SSA executives and staff.

- BLACKLISTING:

Government officials and tech oligarchs contacted members of the National Venture
Capital association (NVCA) and created national “black-lists” to blockade Plaintiffs
from receiving investor funding. This was also confirmed in a widely published
disclosure by Tesla Motors Daryl Siry and in published testimony. If Silicon Valley
political campaign finance oligarchs black-list you (see the "AngelGate" Scandal and
the "High Tech No Poaching Class Action Lawsuit" cases) you will never get investor
funding again.

- FOIA OBFUSCATION:

Federal FOIA requests were hidden, frozen, stone-walled, delayed, lied about and only
partially responded to in order to seek to hide information and run cover-ups. In once
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instance, even though GOVT FOIA staff had the requested FOIA files in their top desk
drawers, they delayed handing the FOIA copies over for nearly a decade in order to run
a cover-up.

- ARBITRARY DEADLINE MANIPULATION:

Crony state and federal officials play an endless game of Catch-22 by arbitrarily
determining that deadlines had passed that they, the government officials, had
stonewalled and obfuscated applications for, in order to force these deadlines that they
set, to appear to be missed.

- POLITICAL POISONING & TOXIC EXPOSURE:

Plaintiffs were found to be strangely poisoned, not unlike the Alexander Litvenko case,
The Salisbury Case and hundreds of other political poisoning cases. Heavy metals and
toxic materials were found right after Plaintiffs work with The U.S. Government
weapons and energy facilities. Many wonder if Plaintiffs was intentionally exposed to
toxins in retribution for their testimony. The federal MSDS documents clearly show that
a number of Plaintiffs were exposed to deadly compounds and radiations, via GOVT,
without being provided with proper HazMat suits which GOVT officials knew were
required.

- WORKPLACE SABOTAGE AND OBSTRUCTION:

Plaintiffs employers were called, and faxed, and ordered to fire target Plaintiffs from
their places of employment, in the middle of the day, with no notice, as a retribution
tactic.

- MEDIA ASSASSINATION PROGRAMS:

On orders from Obama White House officials Google, YouTube, Gawker Media and
Gizmodo Media produced attack articles. Google locked these contrived attack articles
from the Nicholas Guido Denton tabloid empire on the top line, of the front page of all
Google searches for a decade in front of 7.5 billion people, around the world. This
attack-type uses over $40 million dollars in server farms, production costs and internet
rigging. The forensic data acquired from tracking some of these attacks proves that
Google rigged these attacks against Plaintiffs on the internet and that all of Google’s
“impressions” are manually controlled by Google’s executives who are also the main
financiers and policy directors of the Obama Administration. This data was provided to
the European Union for it’s ongoing prosecution of Google’s political manipulation of
public perceptions. Hired attackers Nicholas Guido Denton, John Herman, Adrian
Covert, Ian Fette, Patrick George, Gabrielle Darbyshire and John Cook have been
referred to the FBI for surveillance, tracking and interview relative to the command,
control and compensation for those attacks.
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- COMMERCIAL EMPLOYMENT DATABASE POISONING AND RED-
FLAGGING:

Plaintiffs HR and employment records, on Taleo, Palantir and EVERY recruiting and
hiring database, was embedded with negative keywords and “flags” in order to prevent
the Plaintiffs from ever gaining future employment.

- ATTEMPTS ON THE LIVES OF WHISTLE-BLOWERS:

Gary D. Conley, Seth Rich, Rajeev Motwani who Plaintiffs knew, and many other
whistle-blowers in these matters, turned up dead under strange circumstances. Plaintiffs
has received ongoing death threats for his help to federal investigations in the larger
organized crime investigation relative to this matter. See the list of over 120 dead
victims, lower down in this document, 1/3 of whom worked with Plaintiffs and were
threatened in advance of their deaths.

- REVENUE BLOCKADES AND INTERNET INCOME RE-DIRECTION:

Paypal (A DNC-biased operation owned and operated by White House political
campaign financiers) and other on-line payments for on-line sales by Plaintiffs are de-
platformed, delayed, hidden, or re-directed in order to terminate income potential for
target who competed with the attackers interests and holdings. This further denied
Plaintiffs income. As a test, Plaintiffs built an online store with hundreds of thousands of
products and marketed it globally. Trackers, placed by Plaintiffs technicians, on servers,
discovered that Paypal and an outside “Virgina-based system” were DNS and payment
re-directed all traffic away from the store so that Plaintiffs received no traffic and no
income. In DNS redirection, "website spoofing" sends target Plaintiffs websites to dead
ends where no sales orders or customer inquiries actually get back to the target. These
internet revenue activity manipulations are conducted using outside covert servers
operated by the attackers and revealed in the Snowden Leaks. All commercial
storefronts and on-line sales attempts by target Plaintiffs, had their sites hidden, or
search engine de-linked by a massively resourced facility located in Virginia, Texas or
Palo Alto, California in order to terminate revenue potentials for the Plaintiffs.

- TROLL FARM DEPLOYMENTS:

Contracted trolls, shills, botnets and synth-blog deployments are deployed to place
defamatory statements and disinformation about Plaintiffs in front of 7.5 billion people
around the world on the internet in order to seek to damage their federal testimony
credibility by a massively resourced facility. Some of these troll farms were uncovered
in Russia, Ukraine, Israel and Brazil. Renown author Farrow writes about this technique
in his book: “Catch And Kill”.

- FUSION GPS, MEDIA MATTERS BRAND “KILL” CONTRACTS:
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Campaign finance dirty tricks contractors were hired by campaign financiers to attack
the friends and family members of the target Plaintiffs in order to create low morale for
the target Plaintiffs psyche and motivation.

- MANUAL SEARCH ENGINE LOCK-IN ATTACKS:

In one case covert political partner: Google, transferred large sums of cash to dirty tricks
contractors and then manually locked the media portion of the attacks into the top lines
of the top pages of all Google searches globally, for years, with hidden embedded codes
in the links and web-pages which multiplied the attacks on Plaintiffs by many
magnitudes.

- U.S. PATENT OFFICE MANIPULATION TO BLOCKADE REVENUE:

Covert Cartel financier: Google, placed Google’s lawyer: Michelle Lee, in charge of the
U.S. Patent Office and she, in turn, stacked all of the U.S. Patent Office IPR and ALICE
review boards and offices with Google-supporting employees in order to rig the U.S.
Patent Office to protect Google from being prosecuted for the vast patent thefts that
Google engages in. Google has hundreds of patent lawsuits for technology theft and a
number of those lawsuits refer to Google’s operations as “Racketeering”, “Monopolistic
Cartel” and “Government Coup-like” behaviors. Thousands of articles and
investigations detail the fact that Google, “essentially” ran the Obama White House and
provided over 80% of the key White House staff. A conflict-of-interest unlike any in
American history. Google’s investors personally told Plaintiffs they would “kill him”.
Google and the Obama Administration were “the same entity”. Plaintiffs testified in the
review that got Michelle Lee terminated and uncovered a tactical political and social
warfare group inside Google who were financed by Federal and State funds. For
additional proof, SEE THE VIDEO at:

http://focus-book.com/public/The Battle to Save Inventing.m4v

or

http:/newsplus007.com/public/The Battle to Save Inventing.m4v

Silicon Valley has taken over the U.S. Patent Office with lobbyists and influence
payments. Per Randy Landreneau, the President the U.S. Inventor guild: “ Independence
Day is that special time when we Americans remember and celebrate our country's
freedom. While it may mean different things to many people, suffice to say, it is the
reason we are Free, we have Liberty. Founder, writer, statesman and inventor Benjamin
Franklin wrote, "On Historical occasions, Questions of Right and Wrong, Justice and
Injustice, will naturally arise." Here, on this honored day, we take a quick look at
Invention and our Independence. Towards the beginning of the Declaration of
Independence, whose principal author was our eventual third president, Thomas
Jefferson, the very purpose of our Founders' quest was established. It is stated: "We hold
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these truths to be self-evident, that all men are created equal, that they are endowed by
their Creator with certain unalienable Rights, that among these are Life, Liberty and the
pursuit of Happiness." These were men and women of incredible vision, of intense
courage, and they succeeded in accomplishing their seemingly insurmountable task,
rising up and defeating perhaps the most powerful global Empire of the time, Great
Britain. The United States of America eventually became the beacon of hope and
individual freedom around the world. People from virtually every land came to this
country to seek the American Dream, which ideals include individual and property
rights, religious freedom, liberty, equality and the opportunity for upward mobility,
achieved through dedication and hard work. One of the reasons America became the
world leader in nearly all categories is due, in no small part, to how our Founders
recognized and encouraged invention and innovation. They understood what builders,
creators and designers could mean to a small, fledgling country with such a noble
purpose. After declaring our independence and fighting a long and bloody war to
establish it, our Founders gathered once again in Philadelphia for the Constitutional
Convention to form a government that would embody those ideals embodied in our
Declaration of Independence. The Father of our Constitution and eventual fourth
President, James Madison wrote, in Federalist 43 (January 23, 1788): "A power 'to
promote the progress of science and useful arts, by securing, for a limited time, to
authors and inventors, the exclusive right to their respective writings and discoveries.'
"The utility of this power will scarcely be questioned. The copyright of authors has been
solemnly adjudged, in Great Britain, to be a right of common law. The right to useful
inventions seems with equal reason to belong to the inventors. The public good fully
coincides in both cases with the claims of individuals. The States cannot separately
make effectual provisions for either of the cases, and most of them have anticipated the
decision of this point, by laws passed at the instance of Congress." Thus, within our U.S.
Constitution is that short item, located in Article I Section 8 as Clause 8: "To promote
the Progress of Science and useful Arts, by securing for limited Times to Authors and
Inventors the exclusive Right to their respective Writings and Discoveries." That clause
is, in reality, a significant and powerful part of the American Dream, allowing people
from all walks of life who have a bright and useful idea to capitalize on their innovations
and creations. For more than two centuries that which our Founders established for
inventors and patent holders held true, for the most part. However, the biggest blow to
true Independence for Inventors came with passage of the America Invents Act of 2011
(AIA). Due to ambiguous language and loopholes in that piece of legislation,
multinational conglomerates and Big Tech have all but wiped out what our Founders had
set up, which they hoped would endure - patent holder property rights. When any form
of poor legislation is passed and enacted we are reminded of what Samuel Adams, Sons
of Liberty founder and a leader of the Boston Tea Party, said; "The grand end of civil
government, from the very nature of its institution, is for the support, protection, and
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defense of those very rights; the principal of which, as is before observed, are Life,
Liberty, and Property."

Indeed, Jefferson states it quite succinctly, “Our legislators are not sufficiently apprized
of the rightful limits of their power; that their true office is to declare and enforce only
our natural rights and duties, and to take none of them from us.” Madison adds to that,
“A Government is instituted to protect property of every sort...This being the end of
government, that alone is a just government, which impartially secures to every man,
whatever is his own.” As we celebrate Independence Day, and all that our Founders
provided for our great country, we at US Inventor are working to correct the wrongs and
injustices that have befallen inventors, particularly since the AIA was enacted, by
revitalizing the spirit of our Declaration of Independence ("...Life, Liberty and the
pursuit of Happiness.") through restoration of patent rights and protection as guaranteed
in Article I Section 8 Clause 8 of our United States Constitution ("securing, for a limited
time, to ... inventors, the exclusive right to their respective ... discoveries."). We will not
rest until the rights of inventors have been restored. We're gaining ground, but our
enemies are powerful. We need your help in forwarding our cause and becoming
involved when it matters. This isn't just for us, it's for our children, our grandchildren,
and the future existence of the American Dream.”

Silcon Valley oligarchs have spent billions of dollars to put their people inside the
United States Patent Office and to manipulate patent rulings in order to harm WITNESS
and his peers for the purposes of: 1.) cheating instead of competing by stealing
technologies and not paying for them and, 2.) operating reprisal, vendetta, retaliation
campaigns against competitors and political enemies.

- HONEY-TRAPS:

“Honeytraps” and moles were employed by the attackers. In this tactic, people who
covertly worked for the attackers were employed to approach the “target” in order to spy
on and misdirect the subject. Match.com and other dating sites are owned by famous
politicians and election campaign financier involved with Jeffrey Epstein and those sites
were used to source girls for Epstein and Honey-traps to lure political adversaries.

- FAKE NEWS TABLOID EMPIRE CREATED JUST FOR DEFAMATION
ATTACKS:

Gawker Media, Gizmodo Media, Snopes, SPLC and other hired media assassins were
retained to produce "hatchet job" character assassination articles about Plaintiffs. Then
those articles were faxed, mailed and emailed to Kaiser Permanente and investors with a
note saying: "You don't want to have anything to do with this person, do you..?" in order
to get Plaintiffs fired from their job and get Plaintiffs loans or financing pulled. The
attackers use their round one attack media, that they authored, to create a round two
second wave attack designed to end Plaintiffs life status via economic warfare.
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- HOUSING BLOCKADES:

Mortgage and rental applications had red flags added to them in databases to prevent the
targets from getting homes or apartments.

- HACKING OF PLAINTIFFS DEVICES:

Krebs On Security, Wired, Ars Technica, The Wall Street Journal and most major IT
publications have reported that hundreds of spy "back-doors" have been found on every
Intel, AMD, Apple, Xfinity, Cisco, Microsoft, Juniper Networks motherboard, chip-set
and hardware component set. This means that the attackers used a "key" code can open
any of Plaintiffs computer, server, router, cloud-network or other network connected
device and read every file, photo, video, your calendar and email on devices at any time
from any location on Earth. This has been widely reported on by Glenn Greenwald,
Edward Snowden, Scahill, Cheryl K of CBS News and others. Plaintiffs was hacked at
least 10 times. In a number of instances, people, who Plaintiffs had been communicating
with online, were mysteriously contacted by a third party who sent them the Gizmodo
attack article or phoned them with warnings to avoid Plaintiffs. These kinds of Man-In-
The-Middle interceptions would only have been possible from hacking and MITM
surveillance tactics.

- TECH INDUSTRY BLACK-LIST COORDINATION:

McCarthy-Era "Black-lists" were created and employed against target Plaintiffs who
competed with Obama Administration executives and their campaign financiers to
prevent them from getting funding and future employment. This White House process is
known as “RatFucking”, a tactic that is documented in a variety of published reports and
on Wikipedia. Using Gust, Google Docs, Dropbox and secret meetings, a black-list has
been maintained to attack Plaintiffs for whistle-blowing.

- HUD AND USDA MORTGAGE RIGHTS BLOCKADES:

The housing rights of Plaintiffs were stalled in reprisal. Public records show that tens of
thousands of other Plaintiffs were moved ahead of Plaintiffs even though Plaintiffs
validation metrics exceeded those of almost every other Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs was “black-
listed”.

Additional ‘dirty tricks’ efforts were used per:
https://www.justice-integrity.org/634-intelligence-agencies-use-social-media-for-dirty-

tricks-propaganda-new-report

¢ https://www.commondreams.org/news/2014/02/07/gchgs-dirty-tricks-revealed-false-flags-
virus-attacks-and-honey-traps

e https://theintercept.com/2014/02/24/jtrig-manipulation/

e https://www.salon.com/2011/02/11/threats against glenn greenwald wikileaks/

¢ https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2013/jun/24/surveillance-us-national-security
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https://www.straight.com/news/482846/government-trolls-use-psychology-based-
influence-techniques-social-media

http://federal-report.com/public/The Political Reprisal Vendetta Playbook.pdf
https://thedailybanter.com/2014/02/05/greenwalds-latest-snowden-revelation-the-british-
gchg-is-waging-war-on-hackers/
https://www.cia.gov/library/readingroom/docs/CIA-RDP89-01258R000100010002-4.pdf

...and thousands of additional reports proving the attacker assertions.

Claims for Relief

First Claim for Relief: Administrative Procedure Act

WITNESS repeats and incorporates by reference paragraphs above

GOVT’s final agency action denying WITNESS applications exceeded statutory authority,
was not in accordance with law and was arbitrary and capricious.

WITNESS has been directly harmed and aggrieved by these final, illegal, arbitrary and
capricious agency actions, and by GOVT’s failure to comply with applicable statutes and
regulations in the consideration of WITNESS applications.

WITNESS has exhausted all administrative remedies.

Alternatively, such exhaustion would be futile as GOVT has fixed the funding programs to
benefit government cronies such that there are no circumstances under which WITNESS
applications would ever be approved by any agency.

Second Claim for Relief: Whistle-Blower protection Act

WITNESS repeats and incorporates by reference paragraphs above

GOVT’s final agency action denying WITNESS applications exceeded its statutory
authority, was not in accordance with law, was operated as revenge, reprisal, retaliation for
whistle-blowing and was arbitrary and capricious.

WITNESS has been directly harmed and aggrieved by GOVT’s final, illegal, arbitrary and
capricious agency actions and by its failure to comply with applicable statutes and
regulations in consideration of his funding, rights and benefits applications.

WITNESS has exhausted all administrative remedies.

Alternatively, such exhaustion would be futile as GOVT has fixed the funding programs to
benefit government cronies such that there are no circumstances under which WITNESS
applications would ever be approved by any agency.

Third Claim for Relief: Constitutional Rights Violations

51

WITNESS repeats and incorporates by reference paragraphs above.

GOVT’s final agency action refusing to consider WITNESS applications exceeded its
statutory authority, was not in accordance with law and was arbitrary and capricious.
WITNESS has been directly harmed and aggrieved by GOVT’s final, illegal, arbitrary and
capricious agency action and by its failure to comply with applicable statutes and
regulations in consideration of Witnesses SSA, HUD, DOE, FBI and other agency funds
applications, which was a deliberate strategy to benefit government crony companies by
shrinking the pool of potential recipients.

WITNESS has exhausted all administrative and traditional remedies.
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¢ Alternatively, such exhaustion would be futile as GOVT has fixed the funding programs to
benefit government cronies such that there are no circumstances under which WITNESS
applications would ever be approved by any agency.

e This is to confirm that Complainants rights were violated by U.S. Government contractors
and employees including: - Freedoms of speech, religion, assembly, The right to petition
the government, The right to procedural due process, Freedom from discrimination for
protected classes (sex, race, and national origin)

¢ Complainant was mistreated based on characteristics such as race, gender, religion, or
disability including: Unreasonable searches and seizures of electronic data, Cruel and
unusual punishment via dirty tricks attacks, Losing a job or being passed over for a
promotion due to discrimination, Abuse by a public official, Discrimination based on a
superficial quality or belief, Violating federal laws by withholding someone’s welfare
benefits, Termination of employment for exercising a protected right such as voting;
Violating due process and expelling or suspending a person for exercising their rights;
Discriminatory, harmful, and unequal treatment of Complainant because of their color,
race, age, gender, disability status, and sexual orientation.

* According to 42 U.S. Code § 1983, violations of civil rights typically involve an individual
who is acting from a position of governmental power or “under the color of the law”
enforcing a decree. Individuals acting under governmental authority can also be
government officials when they’re off-duty or independent contractors. The conduct of
specific private organizations, individuals, and entities can be treated as “state action” if the
state validated, encouraged, or caused the action. Such circumstances are common when
private entities are contracted to take over functions that are traditionally considered state
responsibilities. Examples include: Private citizen hired to administer primary or general
elections; Organizations contracted to maintain and operate specific government services;
government staff using their email accounts and computers at home; government staff
working for a competitor or adversary of Complainant during or right after their work at
their government job..

Relief Requested

WHEREFORE WITNESS requests the following relief.

A. A declaration pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §8§ 2201 and 2202 and 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(B) that the
denial of WITNESS’s applications was unlawful, and compensatory and injunctive relief directing
GOVT to approve same.

B. A declaration pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202 and 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(B) that the
denial of WITNESS’S associated organization applications was unlawful, and compensatory and
injunctive relief directing GOVT to approve same.

C. Actual damages claimed for the acts alleged under the basis for these amounts per
Exhibits, including any punitive or exemplary damages claimed, in the precedent amounts per past
related cases, per the reasons claimed herein that WITNESS is entitled to in actual and
punitive money damages.
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D. Such costs and attorney fees as WITNESS may be entitled to under law.
E. WITNESS is also making claims for witness fees, informant fees, rewards, whistle-
blower fees, legal fees and damages in relation this matter, from his interaction with government

agencies.

F. Such other relief as this Court deems just.

Motion For Appointment Of Counsel

Defendants have attacked Plaintiff economically in order to prevent Plaintiff from affording a law firm
for this claim, Plaintiff hereby makes a written motion asking the court to appoint

an attorney for Plaintiff. The Court has copies of Plaintiff’s finances, and the vast number of attempts
to find a lawyer who does not have a conflict-of-interest or a pro-bono ability. The Court should
appoint a lawyer for Plaintiff. The Court should appoint an attorney who has indicated a willingness to
accept such cases on a pro bono basis to represent per 28 U.S.C. §191. Claimant demands legal counsel
be provided by the Court, for claimant, because his rights to fair legal representation, his civil rights
and his Constitutional rights have been blockaded by the Defendants reprisal attacks, in violation of the
law.

Verification

I am the the plaintiff in this action.

I have read the forgoing complaint, and verify and declare that its factual allegations are true,
except to those matters stated on information and belief and as to those matters I believe them to be
true to the best of my knowledge.

WITNESS2021B
(Signed Electronically By Plaintiff) Date:
By:

Its: Plaintiff

53 Federal Complaint



Table of Contents

COMPLAINT DRAFT ...ttt ettt ettt st ettt a et s e s st s st e bt et e sae e bt saseesaseessbeeenseesseenas 3
The attacks and harms against Plaintiff included the following actions:............ccceeeuieriervieeniecrieecieeens 37
AN OVErvieW Of The COVET-UP......cciiiiriieiiiieeiterie ettt e et steste et e steesatesseessaessseesseesssessssesnsessssseens 56
An INCONVENIENE TTULN: ... .eiiiiiieeiee ettt et ettt et e st e s bt e sbeesae e e s e nneeseaneeeean 64
B 2 T4 I i T OO SO SORR PSPPI 68
The MCKINSEY WaAY....uiiieiiiiiiiieeiiteeniteesteeesteeesteesstteessteeesseesssseesssseesssseesssseesssseessssssseeessssssesaeessnsnnes 70
‘INO 1eason’ t0 hire MCKINSEY......cccuiirieiriiirieeierieeteete ettt ettt ste et s b e s saeesabe e e sabaeessnaeennns 71
MCKINSEY’S tTACK TECOT. ...ccuviiiiiieeiiieecieeete ettt et et e s te e et e e e sateesateeessssssaeeeesssnssaaassnnnnns 73
Portions Of The TeStIMOMNY .......cccvirieriiierieriterieeitterte et esteesteestessteesateesseesasessseesssessseessseeessssaessssseessnns 93
Plaintiff DemAnQ........ccueviiriiiiiiieeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt sa e ae et e s be e et e e e aeeennee 113
The Retaliation AtTACKS. .....covterteieeierteeeteet ettt ettt ettt et st sse e bt et e s st e see e st e e smeeenee 117
Officials Manipulated Social Security Money To Retaliate Against Whistle-Blowers.............ccceeuveune. 117
Demand For FBI ‘302 Reports’ On Each Attacker.........cccceeviiriiinienieiiieeieeeeeieete s svee e s 122
THE ATLACKETS. ..ttt ettt e st sb e st s bt eeat e e bt e sabe s beesabe e bt e easesnneas 166
TR DEALNS.......eeeeeiietee ettt sttt bbbttt ettt e et e et e e bt e e beesnae s 168
TRE CATTEL...ceeieeee ettt ettt et b e et e e bt e s ab e s bt e st e e bt e eabe e bt e sabeeseesaneeeaneas 171
THE BOSSES....uvtiuteiieteeieeitet ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt b et a e b et a e b st s ae e bt et e e se e b e st e saeeeans 173
Felony Charges Against The Key Suspects Under RICO..........cccocueiriuiiiriiiiniieiniee e esieeesieeeeeeeeaens 173
Felony Charges Against E1ON MUSK.........cccctiriiriiiinieiiecierieet ettt sttt e s s 181
Felony Charges Against Larry Page, Eric Schmidt, Sergey Brin And Jared Cohen......................... 238
Felony Charges Against Mark Zuckerberg And Cheryl Sandberg............ccccceevviiniiiinviennienniieennnn. 284
Felony Charges Against U.S. Senators And Other Public Officials.........cccceeeeeeiircieiiieniieecieeinn. 289
Related Cases AN DOCKELS......cc.ceouerieriiririeriteeet ettt sttt sae et e sae b s tesse e b eeesnee 293
Trillions Of Dollars Of Mining Manipulations............ccceeeieeiiierieeiieenieecieeseeeieeseeeereeseeesveesseveeesssneas 295
Energy Corruption RECAP........ceeiieiuiieiiiiiiietieiteee ettt ee ettt e e st e e s eaet e e s s e nreeesssnnaeeesennaeeeens 435
The Money Laundering.........ccceeeiieeriieieiieeniieenieeesieeesteesseeessaeeessseeesaeesssseesssseessssesssssessssssnssseesns 448
Crony INSIAer PayOla.......c.cociieiiiiiieieeieeieeeeee ettt ettt ettt e st e st e sba e ate e asaeesnnsaeens 453
Claim AN DaIMAZES.....ccccieieiiieeeiieeeiieeeiteeeitteesteeestteesteeessseeessseesssseesssseessssesssssessssssessesssssseessssssssseees 468
Plaintiffs Causes Of ACHON. ....c.eouiruieririerteeetere ettt ettt et et et e s e b stesaeesseessneennnees 468
Comps For Whistle-Blower And Damages Validation MetriCs..........ccceeeeeereiieeeesciiieeeessiireeeesennnns 473
EXHIBITS ...ttt ettt sttt et et s bt et sa e s bt et e et e s bt e bt sateesmbeesmbeeenseeenseenaneens 474
The Bay Area Culture Of Political COITUPION. ......cccueeriiirieeiieeieeieeete ettt e saeesve e e e ereeeeereeesasaeeas 475
Why Silicon Valley CEOs are such raging psychopaths...........cccccoeieriiiiniiiniiiniiiiciecceceeeee e 483
Palo Alto, California — Home Of The TeCh IMODSTEIS.....uuuviiiietiiieeiierieeeeeeeeeesiieereeeeeseeseeeseeeeeeeesees 578
RUNNING ThE SCAIMIS. ..cuttiiiiiiiiieeieete ettt sttt e et e st e e ae e sbe e bt e ssbeessaeessbaeessnsaeesnssaenns 580
The Tech Bribes Using The StoCK MarKet.........cccuiieiiiiiiiieiiiieeriiecsieeeieeere e seeeseveae e e s seeaes 585
THE HIt JOD..ceeeeteeee ettt ettt b e st s st e b et s st e bt et e et e et e e eare s 602
The Sex Cult Club These Perpetrators USE.........c.ceecveerrieeeiieeniiieenieeesreeesseessseeesseesssseessssssnsseeees 605
Typical tech billionaire kept spreadsheet of 5,000 women he had sex With.............ccccceevvervueereeniueennns 610

'A billionaire a la Epstein': Silicon Valley VC is sued by four employees who claim they helped him
run a harem of women across the country out of rural Montana town and that he 'kept a spreadsheet

of 5,000 women he SIePt With' .......ccuiiiiiiiiiieeceeeeeee et re e s e sbae e saee s 615
The Crimes And Corruption That Plaintiffs experienced...........ccccceevuervieinieniieiniinieiieeieeeeeeen 619
U.S. Senators, Agency Heads And Congress-People Were bribed With These Payments................ 629

54  Federal Complaint



The QUIA PIO QUO.....cciiiieiierieiiee ettt ettt e e e e e s eessbbaae e e e e e eesssassbareseseesessssrasanesesesssnsssesseesesaees 656
IN XL STOPS. e uuettetieiitee ettt e e ettt e e ettt e s ettt e e s et e e s s eabte e e s e mra e e s e e saeeeeessaaeesesnsaeeseensateeesnnssasnnneeaeeeeeeesenas 715

You Owe It To Yourself And The Nation To Take These Crooks Down!...........cccceeveiieeeeireencnnnnn. 724
How Quid Pro Quo Works At The U.S. Dept Of ENeIrgy........ccceceevuierieeriienieniienieeieeseeesiee e eseee e 734
The Corrupt Crony-Capitalism Quid Pro QU0 Payola.........cccceeevuieriiieeiniiiniienieeeieeesieeeeieeee s 742
The Blockades Of The Victim’s Legal Representation............ccceeceerverreeriiernieniesniesiieeseeseeesneeessnneas 742

The INdiSPULADIE FaCLS.....ciiitiiiiiiiiiiieeieeecee ettt ee e st e e s be e e s be e s saseessssaessasaesnsnens 754
The RICO Racketeering Complaint And Reprisal Complaints...........ccccceveverrieeniiennieiniiennieenienieeneeee 774
Blockade Of Plaintiff Legal Representation And Rights...........ccceeieiiiieniieciieniecieeieeieeiee e 792

Victim/Witnesses' Demand State-Funded Legal Representation............cccceecveeneeriieesniieeenneeeennnneen. 792

The Office Of The Special Counsel (OSC) Is Not Your Friend.........ccccceevverieriiienieeniienieeieeeeenennn 794
How The Members Of The Public Were Harmed, Specifically.........c.ccocerviiniiiiniiniieniinieeeeeiee e, 801
The Demand By Victim/PLaintiff...........ccoueeoiieiiiiiiiiececeee ettt e e s e e ea e e naea s 804
How Much Have Others Been Paid For The Same Damages?..........cccocuevvuerriienieinieniieenienieeseee e 806
One Example Of The COIruption eXPETIEIICE. ......c.ueecviirieeiieerreeireesteerteeseeesseeseeesseesseessseesssessseesseessees 808
Recent Results Of Federal And Private INVeStigations..........ccocueervieriiernieenieniiienieeieesieeireeesireeesineees 837
The Scams At The Secretary Of Energy’s OffiCe.......cceooiieiieiiieiiiiiiieieetecteeee et 838
Witnesses Letter To The FBLL.......coiiiiiiiietceeenteee ettt ettt st re e st 844
State-Sponsored Reprisal Attacks Suffered By Plaintiff’s..........cccecieeieeiiieniieiiiiieceeeeeiecee e 852

Killing The IMESSEIGET.........ceeruieeieeiierieesiiesteesitesteesitesteesteesseesstesseesstesasaesstessseesssessssaesssssaessnsseens 873

Character Assassins Contracted By The White HOUSE.........ccccceiriiiiiiieiniiiinieecieeceeeeveeeieeeee e 880
Legal Opinion Media Attack Analysis On Hit-Job On Plaintiff.............ccoccoeiiiniinniiniiniiiiiiceceene 903
State Sponsored Reprisal Programs Operated By Public Officials..........ccccevvieriiiiiiiciiinieeiiecieeieen, 918

The Culture Of Crime In Silicon Vall@y........c.coecueiriiiniiiiieiieteteeitee ettt 934
The Tech Cartel And Their Khaki Pants MODSEETS.........cccceriuieiriiiiiiieeeiieeeiieecieeesieeeseeeesveeeeeesnavnes 942
The Factual All@@AtiONS. .......coecuiiriiirieeieeieeteete ettt et ste et e st st e st e e bt e s s abaeeesasaeesabaeesnasaeens 945
The Rico Violations That Prove That These Guys Are MODSEETS........ccccceerrieeiriieerriieeniieeeesrrreeeeenens 1013

The Rico Tech Cartel Verifications Of Crime..........coceevueiriieriiieniienitenieeiteneeeeeseee e e 1015
What Sort Of Laws And Regulations Were Violated...........cccccverieeiiienieniiienieeieeeieeieeseeesveeeesvneees 1041
What A Jury Would Discover ADout This Case.........ccceerveriuirriieriieinieniieenieeieestessieeseeesssieeesssaeaesns 1046
Congress Took Massive Bribes from Big Tech.........ccceeviiiiiiiiiiiieiecieeteeteee et 1059
Highlight GraphiCs.....ccoveiiiiiieiiei ettt ettt e et e st et e st e et e sbeeesanneeenane 1062
References, Proof And Bibliography..........cccueeciiiiiiiiiiiiiecieeieceeeee ettt e s vee e ave e e aaee s 1102
Acknowledgments & Additional EXhibits.........cccciiriiiiiiiniiniiiiiiieieeeceeeese et 1493
PRESS COVERAGE OF THE CASE.......ootitirterteteetertee ettt sttt st sveste st esvesssaessaaessaseenas 1494

55 Federal Complaint



An Overview Of The Cover-Up

These documents have been provided to The FBI — (C. Wray, P. Cair, Bennett, J. Comey, D. Johnson

& the IG, et al); The DOJ — (Merrick, S. Hinds, E. Holder, S. Winslow, M. Lo, W. Garbers & the IG, et
al), The CFTC — Executive offices), The U.S. Inspector General, The GAO (fraudnet, The IG, et al),
The FCC (The IG), The FEC — (The IG), The SEC — (Charman, SF office, et al), The OGE (The IG),
The U.S. Attorney General, The OSC — (Alexander, et al), The DOE — (Secty, The IG, et al), The FTC
(The IG, Chairman, et al) CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS OFFICES - (Filing Secty, and Senior Members)
; The SSA — (Human Rights Complaints Office, The IG, et al); SPECIAL COUNSEL JOHN W.
HUBER - (J. Huber, DOJ-IG) — SENATE COMMERCE COMMITTEE - (Filing Secty) SPECIAL
COUNSEL JOHN DURHAM - (J. Durham, DOJ-IG, et al) and related law enforcement and regulatory
agencies.

We have contacted all law enforcement and regulatory agencies about this matter. Field agents have
informed us that their bosses have ordered them to stone-wall this case, to avoid writing '302 reports'
(because Congress can see them) and to finger point the matter off to "other agencies" in order to avoid
political embarrassment and administrative shame. Such obfuscation is illegal at a felony-level and at a
Constitutional law level.

We are now copying these papers to 1.) every member of Congress, 2.) every law enforcement and
regulatory agency in the U.S.A. and EU, over 5000 investigative journalists and every American
citizen.

We saw the highest level government officials manipulate government process and Treasury funds in
order to payola themselves, and their friends, and harm their business competitors. We saw government
officials manufacture crisis “stimulus” money for their own pockets!

Senior government officials defrauded us in an energy industry stock market scam, and, in partnership
with their Silicon Valley tech financiers, engaged in a RICO law violating organized criminal
‘enterprise’ and also ran over $30 million of Fusion GPS/Black Cube/Gawker-Gizmodo-Google attacks
against us (Proven by their financial records). The attackers used government resources, agency staff
and government funds. They sought to terminally harm us in retaliation for competing with Defendants
(Defendants = government officials and their Silicon alley oligarch financiers) and for assisting police
with investigations of Defendants. Herein, and via referenced Congressional and Inspector General
investigations, we have provided proof of over 1000 instances of government officials running
retaliation attacks and engaging in an organized pattern of criminal activity via an organized
‘enterprise’ as defined by RICO and anti-trust laws.

We have personally known many of these politicians, their families and their Silicon Valley financiers
since College days. The Defendants invited some of us into their criminal scheme but we chose to
assist law enforcement and public justice instead.
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While the government is planning to give $450,000.00 to each illegal immigrant, ((

https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/news/biden-administration-weighing-450k-a-person-

compensation-to-migrant-families-separated-by-trump ); that same government is with-holding
millions of dollars from us, who saved the government billions of dollars. That same government hired

Fusion GPS, Black Cube, Perkins Coie, Gawker, Gizmodo and other attack services to destroy us
according to federal investigators. We have demanded compensation, back-owed monies and recovery
of our losses. Government agencies responsible for correcting the situation are engaging in cover-ups
and stone-walling. That is why we are forced to release the “whole story”.

We have provided the details in electronic evidence repositories as well as a list of public officials we
have reported to who have failed to take action, been non-responsive and who have operated a cover-up
of this matter.

Senior government officials defrauded us in an energy industry stock market scam, and, in partnership
with their Silicon Valley tech financiers, engaged in a RICO law violating organized criminal
‘enterprise’ and also ran over $30 million of Fusion GPS/Black Cube/Gawker-Gizmodo-Google attacks
against us, their competitors and whistle-blowers. The attackers used government resources, agency
staff and government funds. They sought to terminally harm us in retaliation for competing with
Defendants and for assisting police with investigations of Defendants. Herein, and via referenced
Congressional and Inspector General investigations, we have provided proof of over 1000 instances of
government officials running retaliation attacks and engaging in an organized pattern of criminal
activity via an organized ‘enterprise’ as defined by RICO and anti-trust laws.

From the OPM and Congressional staff we acquired a list of every person who worked at The White
House and the Department of Energy during the periods in question. We then used forensic databases
and securities industry resources to see which ones owned stock, job promises and conflict-of-interest
assets in our competitors and adversaries. So far, we have not found A SINGLE ONE of those people
who did not have a major conflict-of-interest. We encourage the public and the press to conduct the
same examination, independently, and to have the FBI, The GAO, DOJ, IC1J and ProPublica check
their work. When you ‘follow-the-money’, the crimes and the criminals are obvious!

The materials in the referenced documents cover:

- The historical background of the perpetrators and their political and business Cartel actions.

- Our first-hand interactions with the perpetrators.

- Related cases and charges against perpetrators by other parties and agencies.

- The covert financial profit administration/beneficiary web disclosed by ICIJ and federal agency
investigations.

- The reprisal attacks against us financed, commanded and controlled by the perpetrators.

- The cover-up, black-listing, stone-walling and obfuscation tactics deployed by major public officials
in order to delay justice in this case.

- The manipulation of public funds and agencies for the unjust gain of the referenced Cartel and it’s
perpetrator/members at the expense of the public.
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- The ‘convenient’ deaths of a surprising number of individuals involved in this matter.

- Billions of dollars of political campaign financing deployed by the Defendants in national and
regional elections.

- Personal communications between White House staff and government agencies.

- Trillions of dollars of energy industry and media industry profiteering and stock market
manipulations.

- Billions of dollars of high tech and automobile market anti-trust law violations.

Government officials engaged in monopolistic, market-rigging, blacklist-based crimes which harmed
us. Then those officials operated spy-agency-type retaliation/reprisal/revenge attacks against us in
retaliation for: 1.) reporting those crimes, 2.) competing with defendants, and 3.) assisting in the
investigation of those crimes.

Every public official who attacked us: A.) held stock and assets in our competitors, B.) was
compensated by our competitors, C.) was a member of organizations who paid news, internet and
information services to manipulate their output for their own unjust gain, D.) knew that their malicious
assertions were false and defamatory, and E.) and otherwise met the legal means test to qualify as
violators of federal RICO laws, Human Rights laws, Civil Rights standards and related State and
Federal Constitutional rights laws.

By rigging HUD, SSA, DOE, and other public benefits determinations, to harm the funding, payments,
witness fees, informant fees, whistle-blower awards and stock market profits of adversaries, the
Defendants engaged in felony crime. The purpose of a RICO case against the Defendants should be

to cripple the whole crime organization via numerous charges, which shall be brought against multiple
defendants, under multiple liability, which means that prosecutors will find the underlying elements of
of these acts and then have conspiracy on top of it, and then each and every charge against the
perpetrators is separate and runs consecutively .

For example when Elon Musk is charged with bribery and conspiracy that charge may have led to 10-
15 years in prison in the old days, now under RICO, when found guilty of racketeering he can be fined
up to $25,000 and and sentenced to 20 years in prison per each of many racketeering counts.

RICO charges, as part of the charge set, will make these convictions easier. In many cases, the threat of
a RICO indictment can force these defendants to plead guilty to lesser charges, in part because the
seizure of their assets would make it difficult to pay a defense attorney for a case this large.
Racketeering and RICO-related crimes are grave and require skilled defense, that is prepared to face
the government-assembled legal teams in federal court. Essentially, “it means the convicted would
never see the light of day again, they are never getting out. “

Despite its harsh provisions, these RICO-related charges are easy to prove in court, as they focus on
patterns of behavior as opposed to criminal acts. The government officials and their tech oligarch
partners were audacious in publicly promoting their crimes and their above-the-law attitudes. RICO,
here, also permits a private individual “damaged in his business or property” by a “racketeer” to file
a civil suit. The government should, thus, join with us in this case.
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We have proven the existence of an illegal “enterprise®., per the FTC and DOJ legal meaning of that
term.

The defendant(s) are not the enterprise; in other words, the defendant(s) and the enterprise are not one
and the same.

The defendant(s) meet the construct of four specified relationships:

1. the defendant(s) and the enterprise: either the defendant(s) invested the proceeds of the pattern of
racketeering activity into the enterprise;

2. the defendant(s) acquired or maintained an interest in, or control of, the enterprise through the
pattern of racketeering activity;

3. the defendant(s) conducted or participated in the affairs of the enterprise “through” the pattern of
racketeering activity ;

4. the defendant(s) conspired to do all of the above crimes.

The enterprise, herein, is the ‘prize,” ‘instrument,” ‘victim,” or ‘perpetrator’ of the racketeers. A civil
RICO action for this matter should be filed in state AND federal court.

We intend that both the criminal and civil components will allow the recovery of treble
damages (damages in triple the amount of actual/compensatory damages) for Plaintiff.

Our evidence has focused on patterns of behavior AND criminal acts.

We seek multiple liability (charges brought against multiple defendants, which means if prosecutors
now find the underlying elements of of these acts, you have conspiracy on top of it)

Each and every charge against defendants is separate and runs consecutively. Admissible hearsay
evidence is offered in this case. Associative evidence is allowed ( guilt by association meaning if a
defendant profited off the crimes of an organization even if he was not directly involved with the crime
himself he shall still be charged as a co-conspirator and go all the way up the chain of command). This
case structure will incentivize the operatives (soldati) at the corrupt law firms, CPA’s, lobbyists and
media outlets to flip, or roll-over, on the bosses.

This case structure allows both the government and ourselves to engage in substantial asset seizure. The
owners of the racketeering shell corporations, real estate scams and trusts are well-known to often
abscond with the assets. An injunction and/or performance bond ensures that there is something to
seize in the event of a guilty verdict. In addition, the racketeers must forfeit all ill-gotten gains and
interest in any business gained through a pattern of “racketeering activity.” Over 1000 false-front
shells, trusts, dark money and PAC assets are known to be held by the defendants.

The attackers hired, paid, commanded and controlled the attack services: Gawker Media, Gizmodo

Media, Google, YouTube, Media Matters, Black Box, Fusion GPS, Black Cube, PsyOps, Shareblue,
and other brands, and used them to operate retaliation attacks against us and to manipulate government
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agency procedures against us in revenge/reprisal procedures. An investor group, which included us,
with support from Congress, sued the Department of Energy for corruption and won.

In the course of that case The Secretary of Energy, The U.S. Attorney General, The Director of the FBI
and over 100 other federal employees were fired for cronyism, corruption and insider trading.

The Defendants have been proven to have received bribes from our competitors. For example: the most
senior officials in The U.S. Government are the worshipers of Elon Musk, investor’s in Elon Musk’s
companies and suppliers, deciders of the financing for Elon Musk, suppliers of staffing to Elon Musk,
recipients of political campaign financing by Elon Musk and Musk’s covert Google And Facebook
partnership, social friends of Elon Musk and the attackers of Elon Musk’s competitors. We demand
damages payments and monies owed.

The main issues herein include:

1.) The creation and operation of the disclosed organized crime entity involving public figures

2.) The methods and tactics of the bribery they employed using the stock market

3.) The attacks they operated against whistle-blowers and competitors using government resources,
black-listing, funds blockades and dirty tricks services.

4.) The systemized sex trafficking and employee abuse protection scheme they operate

5.) The industrialization of political payola that they enforce using corrupt contracted services and
former intelligence agency operatives

6.) Their coordinated violations of free speech and their systemized control of all digital news and
information

7.) The harms to the public that they caused

8.) Judges and regulators who reviewed this case who owned the culprits companies:
https://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-10038643/131-federal-judges-broke-law-hearing-cases-

involving-companies-financial-in.html

We have disclosed: Retaliation, discrimination, abuse of process; FTCA violations; account stated,;
breach of contract; conversion; defamation; fraudulent misrepresentation; fraudulent concealment;
injurious falsehood, product disparagement and trade libel; civil rights violations and violations of the
U.S. Constitution; misappropriation of trade secrets; prima facie tort; quantum meruit; tortious
interference including a.) Tortious interference with an existing contract, b.) Tortious interference with
prospective, c.) Tortious interference with business relations contractual relations; patent infringement;
personal injury; unjust enrichment; anti-trust law violations; labor law violations and related causes
engaged in by the perpetrators.

The perpetrators include White House officials and their staff, contractors and employees; United
States Senators and their staff, contractors and employees; Department Of Energy officials and their
staff, contractors and employees; Department of Justice officials and their staff, contractors and
employees; Social Security Administration officials and their staff, contractors and employees;
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National Highway And Transportation Administration officials and their staff, contractors and
employees; and, Other government agencies and their staff, contractors and employees as DOES 1
through 20 as proven by their leaked emails, Congressional and FBI investigation records, eye-witness
testimony, their banking and stock market records and recordings. Thus, it is impossible for any agency
to say that this is not their concern or jurisdiction.

Those of us damaged the the actions of these public officials claim for offsets from corrupt acts and
collusion by government employees and contractors, all of whom engaged in said acts in order to
acquire unjust gain with their stock market holdings and other hidden compensation routes. All other
whistle-blowers and victims are on public, and court record, receiving between $300,000.00 and
$150,000,000.00 with an average award of $25,000,000.00.

Our demand includes removal of SSA blockades of funds, removal of blockades of payments,
payments for damages, removal of informant fee blockades, removal of our whistle-blower fee
blockades, payment of back-monies owed, payment for income loss, payment for stock market insider
trading interference by public officials losses and related costs based on court-record historical
precedents and GAAP historical comparative records of competitors who benefited at our expense via
covert relationships with public officials.

Public News Coverage Context Of These Crimes And Corruption Activities:

You have heard about this case in the news. Here is some of the main-stream news coverage of it:

Joshua Comins disclosed how Nancy Pelosi's financial dealings gave her $315 million in assets on just
a government salary. Organized crime is suspected. If Bay Area politicians get mad at a constituent
they can have that constituent “erased” from SSA, HUD and pension benefits, black-listed, media-
attacked and utterly destroyed.

Where's the politician’s ‘dirty money’ money coming from?, everyone is asking.

House Speaker Nancy Pelosi, D-Calif., has served in Congress for nearly 34 years and presently
presides in a top-tier position as one of the most powerful figures in The U.S. Government .

Speaker was unable to pass the bipartisan infrastructure bill as progressives in her own party signaled
their disapproval. Many have condemned her policies, saying they're making it "harder and harder for
average Americans to accumulate wealth," shackling them with taxes and "destroying the dollar with

reckless spending."

The current salary of a Speaker of the House sits in the low six-figures, yet Pelosi is one of the richest
members of Congress.

So what is her secret: "It appears to be her husband, Paul."”

61 Federal Complaint



"After they got married, Paul opened up a real estate and venture capital firm. Through his connections,
he pushed Nancy into the political world, helping her get elected to Congress in 1987,". This is just like
how Dianne Feinstein and Richard Blum hooked up their own deal.

The couple has timed the market and insider trading perfectly over the years while Nancy's been a
Washington insider. With real estate and stocks, the Pelosis always know what the right investment is
based on her lobbyist deals. The Pelosis own several pieces of real estate including a mansion in Napa
Valley valued up to $25 million, a DC waterfront condo worth over $2 million, and a red brick mansion
in California's Pacific Heights.

Her husband owns commercial properties in San Francisco "combined, worth up to $50 million.

In 2018, the Pelosis' wealth has skyrocketed. That year, her financial disclosure report revealed a net
worth of over $114 million. In 2019, Pelosi's assets total up to a whopping $271 million and in 2020,
those numbers went up even more to as high as $315 million.

In 2007, Visa worried the new Democrat Congress would target their swipe fees, costing them billions.
So they hired a team of lobbyists who descended on Pelosi. Visa's CEO personally met with her. She
got donations from them. One of his advisers left and became a VISA lobbyist himself. Suddenly, Paul
Pelosi got a phone call from his broker. He was in luck, Paul was offered a prescreen-ed invite to get in
early on Visa's $18 billion IPO. Did Nancy and her husband hesitate? No, they bought between $1
million and $5 million worth of Visa stock. But it gets better. While Pelosi was speaker, bills that would
have hurt Visa's stock price were blocked in the House. Visa shares going up over 200 percent during
the time, making the Pelosis a fortune on paper.

In January, the Pelosis got a million dollars worth of Tesla stock right before Joe Biden announced
electric car incentives in June. The Pelosi family cashed in big time just before Congress was set to
pounce on Big Tech. Mr. Pelosi exercised options on Google's parent company, Alphabet, making an
easy $5.3 million.

Pelosi, Harris, Feinstein, Google and George Soros own Elon Musk’s companies. Could any competitor
to Musk get a fair shake in commerce or government funding? Never!

In March, Paul Pelosi exercised $2 million worth of Microsoft options, just two weeks before the tech
giant got a $22 billion contract to equip the US Army with high tech headsets. The Pelosis and the
Feinsteins have never been indicted for insider trading, but her marriage investments and access,
combined with extremely fortunate timing, have created a lot of suspicions.

FINCEN, GAO, FBI, ICIJ and private investigators are now following the money, and there sure is a
lot of it. There are hundreds of suspected criminal dark money charges that have been pointed at San
Francisco Bay Area politicians.

Speaking of COVER-UPS:

1.) Simone Biles, The U.S. Olympic Gymastics Team and Larry Nasser sex case , 2.) The Jeffrey
Epstein sex cult case, 3,) The Gov. Gretchen Whitmer kidnapping case, 4.) The 9/11 families case,
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5.) The Michael Sussmann cover-up, and hundreds of other cases prove that government officials
cover-up big crimes in order to avoid personal shame. The victims reported to the FBI, DOJ, GAO,
FTC, SEC and Congress in a timely manner and got stonewalled, lied to, attacked and retaliated against
simply because they reported a crime! THIS CASE is yet another such case where the crimes were
reported long ago but because it involved famous rich people, it was covered up by public officials.
With modern internet media, though, the truth always finally comes out. As an analogy: If you wanted
to plan one of the largest crimes in history, you could use street 'Stop Signs', for example.

You know that the government pays for all of the stop signs. You could have your friends buy all of the
stop sign pole factories, stop sign bolt factories and red reflective paint factories in advance. You then
bribe your politicians and fake news outlets to proclaim that there is a global crisis of people running
stop signs and killing school children. You manufacture this "stop sign running crisis" that will "kill all
of the children within 15 years" if we don't stop it. You claim that the stop sign running is "man made"
and caused by your political opponents because they make whiskey and that causes stop sign running.
You get your politicians to create a giant "stimulus" that ends up almost exclusively giving all of the
stimulus money to you and your corrupt crony friends who own all of the stop sign pole factories, stop
sign bolt factories and red reflective paint factories. There is no doubt that people run stop signs. The
police data proves it. Is stop sign running the biggest crisis in the nation above Cancer, Housing, Drug
Cartels, Political Bribery, Veterans Benefits, hmmmm?

The people who make yellow warning lights and other traffic control devices are cut-out of those funds
because they are competitors to the insiders who own all of the stop sign pole factories, stop sign bolt
factories and red reflective paint factories. You would hire Gawker, Google, Gizmodo, Fusion GPS,
Black Cube, Media Matters, Cambridge Analytica, Shareblue, IN-Q-Tel and other attacker-for-hire
services to kill those competitors and whistle-blowers exposing your crime.

In the pretend "stimulus" the government treasury funds are used to payola your friends monopolies
and cut all of their competitors. If you had done these "stimulus scams" in 2008 and 2021 and evaded
paying taxes like Elon Musk did....you would have pulled off a trillion dollar crime with you and your
friends.

FINCEN, The FBI and the GAO have proven that stock ownership by politicians creates non-
contractible quid pro quo relations with firms like Tesla, Google, Facebook and Netflix. The ownership
by US Congress members in these firms contributing to their election campaigns is higher than in non-
contributors. This bias toward contributors depends on the financial incentives of politicians and the
relation's value. Firms with a stronger ownership—contribution association receive more government
contracts, cash and tax waivers, such as Elon Musk's record-breaking government payola. The financial
gains from these contracts are economically large when politicians buy stocks in covert exchange for
contributions to the politicians, via insider arrangements.

In the “THE FACEBOOK/META FACE-PLANT?” matter, citizens are calling their elected officials
and demanding that the Department of Defense and The Department Of Justice CUT-OFF
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Facebook/WhatsApp/Instagram from their global DNS servers until they answer to Congress for
their crimes. This Silicon Valley social crime operation has been proven to be a national security risk, a
threat to our youth, a bribery operator and a threat to society! The October 3, 2021 CBS News 60
Minutes story was only part of the facts about the Facebook social crimes. October 4, 2021 was the first
day in modern human history that the entire planet was freed from the social stain that is the Facebook
empire. University data scientists and forensic internet analysts were able to compare traffic
manipulations on Oct 1., 2021, by Facebook's web manipulation and privacy harvesting gang, to the
"clean" internet that uniquely existed on Oct. 4, 2021. You can see the changes. You can see who was
controlling what. You can see the fake user data stop...and start. Congressional Senate Commerce
hearing finds that FACEBOOK operates exactly like a Mexican drug cartel run by 'El Zucko' pushing
addictive media and messaging to kids and vulnerable citizens. FACEBOOK makes over one billion
dollars, per day, for each day that they delay Congress from acting! This demonstrates the power that
the referenced “Tech Cartel” has and their ability to “own” Congress.

Plaintiff built and operated one of the first, if not THE first, online social networks not long after Mark
Zuckerberg was born. This claim by Plaintiff was affirmed in a federal hearing at the U.S. Patent
Office, as the First-To-Invent and operate a social network online years before Facebook even existed.

In actuality, when federal and private investigators traced the instigators and beneficiaries of some

other notorious "crisis" things: they and their politicians turned out to all be the exact same handful of
people who owned all of the exclusive "solutions" to the manufactured "crisis".

An Inconvenient Truth:

How Tesla Became a Trillion-Dollar Company Through Corruption,
Bribery And Cronyism

Astonishing story about the rise of green technologies using political

payola

By Ilya Pestov and The Justice Alliance
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After the news that Hertz decided to buy 100 000 Tesla cars for more than $4 billion, Tesla
capitalization has already increased almost by $200 billion. I am not talking about the market
irrationality anymore, but I feel a bit curious. Hertz has recently emerged from bankruptcy and has not
received any wholesale discount from Musk. How and why is Hertz going to buy such expensive cars?
The answer is simple — with taxpayers’ money.

Apparently, the White House has recently passed the Budget Reconciliation Bill, which would cost
$1.75 trillion for US citizens. There are plenty of benefits for the so-called ‘clean energy’ in it,
particularly, 30% of tax deductions for ‘qualified commercial electric vehicles’. It means that after
buying Tesla cars Hertz will receive $1.26 billion of tax cashback. In fact, there are also some benefits
for the installing of electric vehicle charging stations. Hertz has already announced plans to make
thousands of charging stations.

Lithium, Cobalt and rare earth mines are owned by Kleiner Perkins, Goldman Sachs and Department of
Energy/White House insiders. That is what power's Elon Musk's cars. Many say that Tesla was just a
front for invading foreign nations for their lithium batter mines (which are operated with child labor).

It is important to mention that common people have also an access to tax benefits that the public pays
for with their April income taxes and the compensation limits are increased from $7500 to $12 500. As
an example, instead of paying $15 000 income tax you may buy Tesla Model S and pay just $2500. It is
like a pretty bonus from Tesla or a good discount on electric vehicles. Seems to be a good motivation to
refuse internal-combustion engines, doesn’t it?

Moreover, Tesla also gets ZEV credits and other benefits for manufacturing its products. That way, the
US government restructures the automotive market literally by hand and picks the winners and losers.
Do you know what I find the most interesting in this story? The fact that the new bill was published on
October, 28th but Hertz announced buying of Tesla cars on October, 25th. As you can understand, the
decision was made much earlier.

65 Federal Complaint


https://www.spglobal.com/marketintelligence/en/news-insights/latest-news-headlines/us-house-unveils-new-reconciliation-bill-loaded-with-climate-clean-energy-money-67328504
https://www.cnet.com/roadshow/news/ev-tax-credit-increase-biden-agenda-build-back-better/
https://www.mayerbrown.com/-/media/files/perspectives-events/publications/2021/06/comparison-of-green-act-and-wyden-bill-treatment-of-electric-vehicle-tax-credits.pdf
https://taxnews.ey.com/news/2021-1677-budget-reconciliation-bill-contains-many-new-and-amended-housing-and-energy-tax-credits
https://electrek.co/2021/10/26/elon-musk-confirms-tesla-hertz-discount-questions-tsla-surge/
https://electrek.co/2021/10/26/elon-musk-confirms-tesla-hertz-discount-questions-tsla-surge/
https://techcrunch.com/2021/10/25/tesla-hertz-shares-rise-electric-vehicle-order/

You may already know that Secretary of Energy Steven Chu, who gave Tesla their money, and his
Silicon Valley friends at McKinsey Consulting, who provided the staff for the Department of Energy,
were all in the pocket of Kleiner Perkins, where Al Gore works. Chu has now been replaced by an
actress named Jennifer, who laughs at any suggestion that her job involves protecting America by
keeping gas prices low and who owns the very companies that she is giving government funds to.

Advising both Chinese state companies and the Pentagon, McKinsey & Co. exposed
as ‘private biased CIA-type operation’.

McKinsey in recent years has faced accusations of alleged conflicts of interest in its bankruptcy work
and other fields.

McKinsey put Steven Chu and his staff in the Department of Energy and Staffed the Obama White
House. McKinsey flooded Congress, and the world, with biased “white papers” designed to convince
everyone that the only solution to climate change were the companies owned by investors Kleiner
Perkins and Greylock Capital, Mckinsey’ Silicon Valley buddies. McKinsey was one of the biggest
perpetrators of the “cleantech crash” because of the vast insider trading schemes they operated with
Goldman Sachs.

McKinsey's work with the government gives it insights into U.S. military planning and weapons. But
the firm has advised Chinese firms now on U.S. blacklists.Erik Carter for NBC News

By Dan De Luce and Yasmine Salam

WASHINGTON — Global consulting giant McKinsey & Co.’s work with both the Pentagon and
powerful Chinese state-owned enterprises poses a potential risk to national security that federal
agencies can no longer ignore, lawmakers and critics say.

McKinsey’s consulting contracts with the federal government give it an insider’s view of U.S. military
planning, intelligence and high-tech weapons programs. But the firm also advises Chinese state-run
enterprises that have supported Beijing’s naval buildup in the Pacific and played a key role in China’s
efforts to extend its influence around the world, according to an NBC News investigation.

There is no evidence or allegation that McKinsey has damaged U.S. national security, and U.S.
authorities have not charged the firm with violating federal contracting laws related to its work with
Chinese clients.

But with tensions high between China and the U.S., McKinsey’s business operations in both countries
are coming under growing scrutiny. Critics say the firm, the world’s largest consulting company, needs
to divulge more details about its work in China, particularly amid concerns in Washington about
Beijing’s industrial espionage, arms buildup and intellectual property theft.

Apart from its consulting in China, McKinsey has come under sharp criticism from lawmakers and
faced legal challenges over alleged conflicts of interest in other fields.

The company this year agreed to pay $573 million to settle allegations from 49 states t